
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, February 29, 2024

7:00 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - Planning Commission members will participate in person in Council Chambers
(Community Room, 100 Village Center Drive, Suite 150, North Oaks, MN) during the meeting. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend.  Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically
from a remote location may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number:
1-312-626-6799, Webinar ID: 830 9377 7327 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83093777327.  

1.  Call To Order

2.  Roll Call 

3.  Pledge

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Planning Commission
during the public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action
will be taken by the Commission on items raised during the public comment period unless the item
appears as an agenda item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Approval of Previous Month's Minutes
6a.  Approval of Planning Commission Minutes of 11.30.2023

Planning Commission Minutes  11.30.2023 v2.pdf

7.  Business Action Items
7a.Public Hearing- Consider Conditional Use Permit for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located at 8

Sherwood Trail.
2024-02-29 staff packet_8 Sherwood Trail.pdf

7b.Public Hearing- Consider Conditional Use Permit for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located at 1
Sherwood Trail.
2024-02-29 PC Packet_1 Sherwood Trail.pdf

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2464647/Planning_Commission_Minutes__11.30.2023_v2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463088/2024-02-29_staff_packet_8_Sherwood_Trail.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463089/2024-02-29_PC_Packet_1_Sherwood_Trail.pdf


Planning Commission February 29, 2024

2

7c.Public Hearing- Consider Conditional Use Permit for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located at 2
Sherwood Trail.
2024-02-29 Staff packet_2 Sherwood Trail.pdf

7d.Public Hearing- Consider Conditional Use Permit for garage size in excess of 1,500 square feet and building
addition for property located at 70 W. Pleasant Lake Road.
2024-02-29 PC Packet_70 W Pleasant.pdf

7e.Consider septic variance for property located at 4 Dove Lane
2024-02-29 Staff packet_4 dove lane.pdf

7f.Public Hearing - Consider Ordinance amending City Code XV, Chapter 151, Regarding garage definitions and
garage size standards
2024-02-29 PC Packet_garage size ordinance v2.pdf

7g. Public Hearing - Consider Ordinance amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding building height and
setback standards in the RSL - Residential Single Family Low Density District
2024-02-29 PC packet_setback ordinance v3.pdf

7h.Consider Ordinance amending City Code Title XIII, Chapter 130, regarding unnecessary noise
Memo re Noise Ordinance.pdf

Ord Amd Noise Restrictions 2.23.2024.pdf

8.  Commissioner Report(s)

9.  Adjourn

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463093/2024-02-29_Staff_packet_2_Sherwood_Trail.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463094/2024-02-29_PC_Packet_70_W_Pleasant.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463095/2024-02-29_Staff_packet_4_dove_lane.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463828/2024-02-29_PC_Packet_garage_size_ordinance_v2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2470189/2024-02-29_PC_packet_setback_ordinance_v3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463101/Memo_re_Noise_Ordinance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2463102/Ord_Amd_Noise_Restrictions_2.23.2024.pdf


North Oaks Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

City of North Oaks Community Meeting Room 
November 30, 2023 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
Chair Cremons called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL   
Present: Chair David Cremons, Commissioners Grover Sayre III, Bob Ostlund, Joyce 
Yoshimura-Rank, Stig Hauge, Nick Sandell, Councilor Mark Azman 
Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, City Attorney Bridget Nason, City Planner Kendra 
Lindahl 
Others Present: Videographer John   
A quorum was declared present 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Cremons led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Resident Bill McNee, 11 Sunset Lane, spoke on concern of the fence variance request. He is 
concerned about the precedent it sets with the look and durability of vinyl fencing and the long-
term visual effect and maintenance as it ages.  
 
Patty Model Jansen who lives across the street in Three Oaks development which is across the 
road from the proposed fencing. She is concerned about a huge vinyl fence, believes tree 
shielding and berm already in place that would do the same. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
Chair Cremons  
 
MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded Sandell, to approve the agenda as amended. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MONTH’S MINUTES 
• Approval of October 26, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 
MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Sayre, to approve the Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes of October 26, 2023. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
7. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS 

3



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  November 30, 2023 
 

P a g e  | 2 

a. Discussion and Possible Action on Fence Variance #23-7 at Spring Farm Development  
• City Planner Lindahl introduced the two variance fence requests regarding the fence 

request: 1st is to allow a 6-foot-tall fence with less than a 30-foot setback from the lot 
lines (12 feet from Centerville Road and 2.2 feet from west lot line of 63 Spring Farm 
Road).  The 2nd variance is to allow the fence to cross property lines (with cross three 
common open space parcels – tracts YYY, ZZZ, and AAAA on RLS 639.  There is 
nothing in code that prohibits the vinyl type of fence, just the solid nature of fence.   
The ordinance provides 12 standards for fences including open space, and the plans 
comply with all but 2 requiring variances.  Variances must reflect “practical 
difficulty”.   The fence would be between 2 feet to residential lot lines and 12 feet to 
Centerville Road. 

• There is also a utility line crossing.  There would need to be agreement that they 
would remove the portion of fence if utility work is needed on that easement.  

• The staff report reflects 2 options: If believe the variances meet the standard for 
practical difficulty and choose to approve, there are findings noted.  If do not believe 
variance standards have been met, then Commission should recommend denial with 
findings that the variance standards have not met based on discussions from the 
meeting. The ordinance states fence in excess of 48” high must be at least 30 % open 
through the structure to allow the passage of light, wind and air.  

• John Sonnek from Charles Cudd Company from a 30 % open fence to a closed fence. 
He stated a row of trees doesn’t work here because the old growth trees are in place, 
and a row of arborvitaes won’t grow well underneath existing oaks.  He believes a 
fence would also provide better noise buffer from traffic than trees. The 6-foot fence 
would provide privacy from inside homes from the traffic.  

• Yoshimura-Rank asked if there is research showing reduction in noise. 
• Sayre asked why they selected vinyl. Sonnek noted stated it was select due to their 

experience of longevity, as opposed to wood fences which can deteriorate quicker and 
require ongoing maintenance by Homeowners Association. 

• Sonnek noted they selected white since it blends in better during winter when there is 
no leaf coverage. The fence is about 900-1200 feet. It would stay on the North Oaks 
side of the current oak trees.   There is a lot of maples and buckthorn, which actually 
provides undergrowth. 

• Ostlund asked how long the fence is. Planner Lindahl noted Page 18 of packet shows 
the actual location.  Cremons noted it is 1,000 feet.  Kress stated there is no other City 
variance that has been previously granted for solid wall fence.  Cremons concerned 
about setting precedent when there are many other homes in North Oaks that also 
back up to a road corridor.  

• Sandell mentioned he believes that some of the other developments could follow suit, 
however believes this does have some unique aspects due to proximity as the location 
of the fence would not be on private property, but on homeowners association land. 

• Kress asked why a fence and not install a secondary natural berm. Applicant stated a 
fence would preserve trees.  

• Sonnek noted that NOHOA has not provided their input yet, he believes they are 
waiting on City input.  

• Attorney Nason stated there could be conditions to maintain up keep.  

4



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  November 30, 2023 
 

P a g e  | 3 

• Cremons asked how many trees would have to come down to provide more berm. 
Sonnek stated a lot.  Sonnek stated the fence as presented is at 1st floor level, and land 
is designed with concern for water flowage.  

• Commissioners general feedback asked for a shortest fence option, concern for 
quality of materials, and whether there are alternative options.  

• Attorney Nason reinterated the factors for approving a variances including: they must 
be in harmony with environment and that practical difficulties must exist outside of 
the owners control. Economic considerations alone are insufficient to find for a 
variance. Council can place conditions of maintenance requirements if they approve 
the variance request.  

• Cremons noted the deadline for decision is December 25th. Believes that additional 
discussion is needed to address both needs of new homeowners and neighbors across 
the street. He asked if can revisit at a later time to allow time to explore better 
options. 

• Attorney Nason stated if desire they can continue it to the next meeting with request 
to applicant to provide additional information, with City staff to send a 60-extension 
letter from the December 25th date.   

• Krista Wolter, 7 Skillman Lane, noted that as a realtor she that has taken buyers 
through the model home that backs up to Centerville Road. The buyers felt they 
would not like to see the cars going back and forth. There are lots of trees along 
Centerville, it would be nice if they were Evergreens.  The concern is the visual for 
buyers. 

• Sayre asked if they felt there is a safety concern due to proximity to road. Wolter did 
not feel that was a concern due to the berm, it is more of a visual road issue.  

• Administrator Kress asked that Charles Cudd meet with the City Forester to see if 
alternate option of adding trees, as well as meeting with Ramsey County to see if 
there are any plans for the easement / road.   Kress would also like to discuss with 
original developer to see if alternatives.  

• Cremons suggested the City issue the 60-day letter, and in interim reach out to 
NOHOA for their feedback, as well as meet on site with City Forester and Mark 
Houge of North Oaks Company.  
 

MOTION by Sayre, seconded by Yoshimura-Rank, to continue the hearing to 
January Planning Commission meeting.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
7b. Discussion on Garage Size Ordinance Amendment   
• City Planner Lindall noted this is a follow up discussion regarding the verbiage for the 

revised Garage CUP ordinance. The working group has met and revised the threshold for 
requiring a CUP for excess garage space to 2,000 feet. There is no change to the verbiage 
referencing Floor Area Ratio. The Planning Commission is asked to review draft language 
and provide feedback for staff. If sufficient, can schedule a public hearing in January.  

• Attorney Nason stated that the F.A.R. verbiage is not required because it is elsewhere, 
however it can be placed here as well if want to bring it to attention.  

• Planner Lindall clarified that not all zoning has a .12 floor area ratio (F.A.R.). The .12 FAR 
listed only applies to RSL, so it could be confusing. Possibly more general statement that 
“Garage must be calculated in the F.A.R. calculation” would add more clarity.  

5



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  November 30, 2023 
 

P a g e  | 4 

• Commissioners seemed comfortable with the 2,000 square feet threshold and general F.A.R. 
statement. A public hearing will be scheduled as part of the January 2024 Planning 
Commission hearing.  
 

7c. Discussion of Setback/Natural Suitability Ordinance Amendment 
 
Discussion of Height Setback 

• Cremons stated this a follow up to prior discussion. Lindall clarified the language of 
working group is on Page 59 with the alternate language on 65.  The focus of discussion 
was whether if just a portion of building exceeds the 35 feet, does the ENTIRE building 
needs to have a set 50 foot setback, or whether just that side adjacent to the lot line.  

• Key points of the 3 options: 
o Chimney and weather vanes do not count as building height.  
o The options include: move whole building, move building wall, or move element, 

for the side that is in excess of 35 feet.   

o  
 

• Council Liaison Azman believes that portion or elevation that exceeds 35’ only requires 
the additional setback.  Administrator Kress noted that the way it is worded on page 64 is 
clear to him and allows clarity for applicants.  He would also like to have examples 
shown as “exhibits” as part of the CUP application to help applicants visualize 
requirements.     

• The Ordinance verbiage will be tweaked and scheduled for review at January meeting. 
 
 

Discussion natural topography for walk-outs.  
• Lindall stated working group still under discussion to nail down how to determine 

verbiage in what is considered a natural condition for a walkout “suitable site”. Updates 

6



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  November 30, 2023 
 

P a g e  | 5 

to the ordinance verbiage include: 

 
• Cremons stated the intent is to look at the condition of the property at the time the 

applicant submits. It has a natural slope in topography, no artificial grade change in total 
excess of 6 feet is required or created for the walkout. 

• Sayre noted that it shouldn’t be too restrictive, however it is difficult to know what is too 
restrictive. The goal is to prevent builders from bringing in soil and raising a house on a 
hill to create an artificial slope.  

• Lindall stated that every home and lot is different. Good builders can make homes that fit 
the land and 6 feet seems reasonable.    

• Azman stated that North Oaks guiding principal is to build homes to the land, rather than 
designing the house and making the lot fit it.   

• General consensus that the 6 feet seems reasonable, if it meets the character of land.  
• Tweaks will be made to the ordinance based on conversation of Planning Commission, 

noticed for public hearing and a vote taken at the next meeting.  
 
 
8. COMMISSIONER REPORT(S) 

• Administrator Kress stated the deadline for Planning Commission openings is tomorrow 
at 4 p.m. There have been a few applications received so far.  

 
9. ADJOURN 
 
Chair Cremons stated the next scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission is Thursday, 
January 25, 2024. 
 
There was additional conversation by Commissioners regarding the fence proposal on 
Centerville Road. Commissioners are encouraged to visit the model home to get a feel for what it 
is like for the new homebuyers.  
 
MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Hauge, to adjourn the Planning Commission 
meeting at 8:59 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator  David Cremons, Chair  
 
Date approved____________ 

 

7



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting  November 30, 2023 
 

P a g e  | 6 

 

8



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  February 29, 2024 
 
RE: PUBLIC HEARING. Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess of 35 

feet at 8 Sherwood Trail 
 

Date Application Submitted   January 25, 2024 

Date Application Determined Complete: February 2, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   March 14, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    March 25, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Mark Englund of Hansen Homes has requested approval of a conditional use permit to allow the 
construction of a new home at 8 Sherwood Trail to be 44.2 feet in height where 35 feet in is the 
maximum height permitted in the City Code. The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well as 
building elevations, a survey and a site plan for the proposed structure. 

 

 

 

 

 

9



 

 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently undeveloped. The property 
is in the East Preserve development.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Homes greater than 35 feet in 
height are subject to the conditional use permit 
(CUP) standards and process in Section 
151.050(D.7) (conditional uses), Section 
151.076 (CUP review criteria) and Section 
151.079 (CUP procedure) of the Zoning Code.  

The 2.6-acre property is located along Sherwood Trail, east of the intersection of Sherwood 
Trail and Sherwood Road (County Road 4).  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Height 

The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow the southern (rear) elevation of the proposed home 
to exceed 35 feet in height. Elevations provided by the applicant show the proposed home to be 
44.2 inches in height along the side and rear facades. The front facade of the home is 34.9 feet 
in height. Building height is defined as the vertical distance from grade as defined herein to the 
top ridge of the highest roof surface in Section 151.005 of the Zoning Code. 

Setbacks  

The proposed single-family home exceeds the 30-foot minimum setback requirements at all 
property lines and street easements. The front elevation is set back 274.3 feet from the roadway 
easement. The side elevations are 42.2 feet from the east property line and 69.5 feet from the 
west property line. The rear elevation is setback more than 200 feet from the rear property line. 
The east building setback encroaches into the additional setback required for buildings in 
excess of 35 feet in height. Staff has included a condition requiring the applicant to shift the 
location of the building so it complies with the additional side setback requirements. 

 

 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

10



 

 

Size 

The footprint of the house is approximately 3,730 square feet. A FAR worksheet has not been 
provided with the application. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR 
requirement at the time of review by the Building Official. 

Wetlands 

There are two wetlands on the site. The Code requires a 
30-foot setback from the wetlands plus VLAWMO  
encourages a 30-foot wetland buffer. The Code also 
requires that driveways be 30-feet from the property line. 
The applicant did not request a setback variance but a 
setback variance is required to construct the house at the 
proposed location.  

The approved plans for the East Preserve development 
showed the home site at the front of the lot, which would 
have eliminated the need for the driveway variance. It is 
the applicant’s responsibility to show that the practical 
difficulties exist, and that the mandatory criteria for 
issuance of a variance are met, before the City Council 
could approve the required variance. Without a variance 
from the wetland setback requirements, the proposed 
house cannot be constructed as proposed. 

Septic 

Section 51.01 of the City Code requires the plans to show the location of two septic systems, 
each 5,000 sq. ft. in size, that comply with setbacks and will be protected during construction.  
The plans must be revised to show the second septic site with supporting documentation from a 
licensed SSTS professional.  

Building Height CUP 

To allow a conditional use permit for a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.05(D.7) 
of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered: 

1. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point; 
 
The proposed front elevation does not exceed 35 feet at any point. 

Figure 2- preliminary plans 

11



 

 

 
2. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet; 

 
The building height at the rear and side elevations does not exceed 45 feet. 
 

3. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are 
naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level; 
 
Based on review of the plans, topography of the site and Ramsey County GIS, the proposed 
home and walkout level appear conducive to the site’s natural layout. Prior to construction, 
the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does 
not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site 
visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 
 

4. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

 
The proposed home is two full stories with a basement.  

 
5. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of 

adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent 
setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and 

 
The proposed front elevation is a maximum of 35 feet tall. The side and rear elevations are 44.2 
feet in height. The increased height of the side and rear elevations requires a 50 foot setback from 
their respective property lines. The rear and west elevations comply with the additional setback 
standard. The east elevation is situated 42.2 feet from the east property line and must be setback 
an additional 8 feet. Plans shall be revised to comply with the required 50 foot setback from the side 
and rear elevations. There is space within the site to shift the building to the west in order to 
accommodate the additional setback. 

 
6. Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

The applicant has complied with the fees associated with Section 151.083. 

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
conditional use permit request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff 
has reviewed the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 

12



 

 

 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The proposed single-family should not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 

neighborhood; 
 
The proposed single-family home use will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns.  

7. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 

13



 

 

The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
 
9. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
As proposed, the use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
10. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Location Map 

Exhibit B: Site Survey dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit D: Building elevations dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit E:  VLAWMO Letter dated March 9, 2023 

Exhibit F: City Engineer memo dated February 14, 2024 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission continue this request so that the applicant can 
evaluate options for the lot, revise the plans to show two septic sites and either: 1) apply for a 
setback variance or revise the plans to comply with the required wetland setbacks. 

14



 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  
In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has the 
following options:  
 
A) Recommend approval of the application with conditions, based on the applicant's 

submission, the contents of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the 
Planning Commission.  
 

• This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 
to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions.  
 

B) Recommend denial of the application with findings for denial clearly articulated. 
 

C) Recommend continuance of the application review based on the need for more 
information in which to process the request. This would allow the applicant time to apply for 
a variance so that the conditional use permit applicant and variance can be reviewed 
together.  

 
 

15



Map Ramsey

Personal Property

Tax Parcels

Cities

County Offices

2/6/2024, 12:05:50 PM

0 0.4 0.80.2 mi

0 0.6 1.20.3 km

1:16,000

Ramsey County
Ramsey County MN

16



1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

-

� _LL[',' 

I _LLL 

LLL� 
�LLLI"'' 

, I_LLL":'
� 'I_LLL' 

• L L - :-----._ 

-

•.7 l\l\i-
1 91 .C 

91!::i.!::; :< 

91c:.1 x 
<<<\_ .·, 

''\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY SURVEYED 

J e.s 

I 

'.:.112. 

I 

I 

I 

21'9 

Tract G, REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 634, according to the recorded plat thereof, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

GENERAL NOTES 

Site Address: 8 Sherwood Trail, North Oaks, Minnesota 55127 

Flood Zone Information: This property appears to lie in Zone X (Areas outside the !-percent annual chance floodplain, areas 
of 1 % annual chance sheet flow flooding where average depths are less than 1 foot, areas of 1 % annual chance stream flooding 
where the contributing drainage area is less than 1 square mile, or areas protected from the 1 % annual chance flood by levees. 
No Base Flood Elevations or depths are shown within this zone. Insurance purchase is not required in these zones.) per Flood 
Insurance Rate Map, Conununity Panel No. 27123C0030G, effective date of June 4th, 2010. 

Parcel Area Information: Gross Area: 113,362 s.f. ~ 2.60 acres 

919.2 

kl. 7 

9 ']_,: 

--4-. 
\,_I 

/-

Tract G, #8 Sherwood Trail 

An easement, for purposes of a roadway for ingress and egress, over the northwesterly 30.00 feet thereof and being adjacent to Tract L,
REGISTERED LAND SURVEY NO. 634. 
An easement for utility purposes over the southeasterly 12.00 feet of the northwesterly 42.00 feet thereof.
An easement for trail purposes lying 15 feet each side of the following described line:

Beginning at the southeast comer of Tract G, thence on a bearing of North 11 degrees 00 minutes 

\ 

00 seconds East, assuming the most southeasterly line of said Tract G bears South 54 degrees 38 minutes 09 seconds West, a distance of85.00
feet;
thence North 22 degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 76.00 feet;
thence North 64 degrees 27 minutes 40 seconds West, a distance of 83.14 feet;
thence North 26 degrees 09 minutes 36 seconds West, a distance of 169.00 feet;
thence North 00 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, a distance of 55.00 feet;

\ 

thence North 48 degrees 00 minutes 54 seconds West, a distance of 80.11 feet to a point on the northeasterly line of said Tract G, distant 122.00 

.j 

I

I 
/ 

\ 

\ 

I/ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

Bearings are based on the Hennepin County 
Coordinate System (NAD 83 - 1986 adj.) 

SURVEY LEGEND 
Roadway Easement Area: 3,547 s.f. ~ 0.08 acres 

Lot Area To Roadway Easement: 109,815 s.f. ~ 2.52 acres 
Wetland Area: 23,404 s.f ~ 0.49 acres 

feet from the most northeast comer of said Tract G; - --------------------------------------- --

Principal Structure Setbacks - Front: 30 feet from roadway easement 
Side: 30 feet 
Rear: 30 feet 

Please note that the general restrictions for the subject property may have been amended through a city process. We could be 
unaware of such amendments if they are not in a recorded document provided to us. We reconunend that a zoning letter be 
obtained from the Zoning Administrator for the current restrictions for this site. 

Utilities: We have shown the location of utilities to the best of our ability based on observed evidence together with evidence 
from the following sources: plans obtained from utility companies, plans provided by client, markings by utility companies and 
other appropriate sources. We have used this information to develop a view of the underground utilities for this site. However, 
lacking excavation, the exact location of underground features cannot be accurately, completely and reliably depicted. Where 
additional or more detailed information is required, the client is advised that excavation may be necessary. Also, please note that 
seasonal conditions may inhibit our ability to visibly observe all the utilities located on the subject property. 

I hereby certify that this survey, plan or report was prepared by me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Dated this 25th day of January, 2024. 

Daniel L. Schmid� PLS 
schmidt@sathre.com

FIELD CREW NO. BY 

Minnesota License No. 26147 

DATE REVISION 

thence North 26 degrees 09 minutes 36 seconds West, a distance of 122.00 feet to said northeast comer. @ CAST IRON MONUMENT 

Proposed Elevations - WO 
Proposed Garage Floor Elevation 
Proposed Top of Foundation Elevation 
Proposed Basement Floor Elevation 

Offset Irons 
(elevations are to the top of pipe) 

OS #1� 914.07 OS #2� 916.85 
OS #4� 910.60 OS #3� 913.24 

� 921.0 
� 921.3 
� 912.6 

Grading Quantities (CY) 

Fill 

Cut 30.03 

House Footing 0 

Garage Footing 0 

Porch Footing 0 

Driveway 0 

Egress Pit 0 

Total Fill 0 

Total Cut 30.03 

Total (+/-) 30.03 

0 IRON PIPE MONUMENT SET 
•
• 
:x 
X 
�
6 
... 

0 
�
161 
[I 
[I 
© 
© 
[lJ 

6 
¢I 

IRON PIPE MONUMENT FOUND 
DRILL HOLE FOUND 
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT SET 
CHISELED ••x•• MONUMENT FOUND 
REBAR MONUMENT FOUND 
PK NAIL MONUMENT SET 
PK NAIL MONUMENT FOUND 
PK NAIL W/ ALUMINUM DISC 
SURVEY CONTROL POINT 
A/C UNIT 
CABLE TV PEDESTAL 
ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER 
ELECTRIC MANHOLE 
ELECTRIC METER 
ELECTRIC OUTLET 
YARD LIGHT 
LIGHT POLE 

(D FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE 

F'" 
[eel 
le,] 
[TI 
© 
[01 

FIRE DEPT. HOOK UP 
FLAG POLE 
FUEL PUMP 
FUEL TANK 
PROPANE TANK
GAS METER 
GAS VALVE 

© GAS MANHOLE
� GENERATOR 
EB GUARD POST 
18] HAND HOLE 
� MAIL BOX 

TWP:030-RGE.22-SEC.06 

@ PIEZOMETER 
c-w POWER POLE 

GUY WIRE 
ROOF DRAIN 
LIFT STATION 
SANITARY MANHOLE 
SANITARY CLEANOUT
STORM MANHOLE 
STORM DRAIN 
CATCH BASIN 
FLARED END SECTION 
TREE CONIFEROUS 
TREE DECIDUOUS 

WOE WALKOUT ELEVATION
FFE FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION 
GFE GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION
TOF TOP OF FOUNDATION ELEV. 
LOE LOWEST OPENING ELEV. 

p · •• . · . I CONCRETE 
BITUMINOUS 

-BSIIL-BSBL-BSEL- BUILDING SETBACK LINE 
- -CTV- - CABLE TV 

CONCRETE CURB 
- s,o __ .. CONTOUR EXISTING

..---G@)__________ CONTOUR PROPOSED 
-0-0-0- GUARD RAIL 

TREE CONIFEROUS REMOVED -- DT - - DRAIN TILE 
TREE DECIDUOUS REMOVED -- ELC-- ELECTRIC UNDERGROUND 
TELEPHONE MANHOLE -x--x- FENCE 
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL -- FO -- FIBER OPTIC UNDERGROUND 
UTILITY MANHOLE 

[QI UTILITY PEDESTAL 
l\'l UTILITY VAULT 
@ WATERMAIN MANHOLE 
@ WATER METER 
c@a WATER SPIGOT
¢Ii» WELL 
[i,ii] MONITORING WELL
(]) CURB STOP 
M GATE VALVE 
"'cf' HYDRANT 
lfil IRRIGATION VALVE 
[eiiJ POST INDICATOR VALVE 
---.;, SIGN 

� SOIL BORING 

-- GAS-- GAS UNDERGROUND 
--OHU-- OVERHEAD UTILITY 
� TREE LINE 
-->-- SANITARY SEWER 
--»-- STORM SEWER 
-- TEL-- TELEPHONE UNDERGROUND 
cccx::x::x:::x= RETAINING WALL 
-- UTL-- UTILITY UNDERGROUND 

- -I - - WATERMAIN

-'u'-
0--
G 
e 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
RAILROAD TRACKS 
RAILROAD SIGNAL 
RAILROAD SWITCH 
SATELLITE DISH 
WETLAND BUFFER SIGN 

JD ML 1/24/2024 HOUSE STAKE IN FIELD 
USE (INCLUDING COPYING, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR 

CONVEYANCE OF INFORMATION) OF THIS PRODUCT IS 
STRICTLY PROHIBITED WITHOUT SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.'s 

EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION. USE WITHOUT SAID 
AUTHORIZATION CONSTITUTES AN ILLEGITIMATE USE AND 
SHALL THEREBY INDEMNIFY SATHRE-BERGQUIST. INC. OF 

<,;l'-s 
�<,; 

su
,, SATHRE 

f,.-$-J.-
BERGQUIST 

Ramsey County CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY 
FILE NO. 

3279-1538 
DRAWN 

ML 

CHECKED 
---I----+---+-------+----------------< ALL RESPONSIBILITY. SATHRE-BERGQUIST. INC. RESERVES 

DLS 
DATE 

01-12-2024

THE RIGHT TO HOLD ANY ILLEGITIMATE USER OR PARTY 
LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGES OR LOSSES 

RESULTING FROM ILLEGITIMATE USE. 

�"' 
0 "' 

/ 
Q 
'1-.,-ll S

� "' 
INC. NORTH OAKS, PREPARED FOR: 1 

� 14000 25TH AVENUE NORTH, 
MINNESOTA SUITE 120 ��

p\-� PLYMOUTH MN 55447 
(952) 476-6000 WW.SATHRE.COM

HANSON BUILDERS 2 

17



18



9'-2" M.O.9'-2" M.O.

16'-2" M.O.

LE
D

G
E 

W
/ 

W
O

O
D

 C
A

P

A

A

C

C

B

B

D D

RAIL

G
IR

D
ER

6X
6 36X78

FIXED4-
2X

636X78
FIXED

84X78
FIXED TEMP

SET THESE WDWS
SAME HT AS EXT DOOR

(3) 11 7 8" LVL FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNER

3'-0"X8'-0"
LIFESTYLE

84X78
FIXED-TEMP

SET THESE WDWS
SAME HT AS DOOR

36X78
CSMT

(2
)-

30
X5

2
C

SM
T

2680

2080

3080

2480

3080

2480

LI
N

EN

TO BE
DESIGNED

(3) 9 12" LSL FLUSH
EXTEND TO BOTH CORNERS

3-
2X

6

3-
2X

6

43X72
RECESS

REF

D
RI

N
K 

RA
IL

IN
T.

 G
LA

SS
D

O
O

R

SUMP

ER
V

FURNACE

FD

WATER
METER

FURNACE

ERV

VERIFY LCTNS
IN FIELD

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

11'-0" 9'-0" 9'-4 1/2" 9'-1 1/2"

20'-0" 18'-6" 20'-0" 17'-6"
78'-0"

2'-10 1/4"

17
'-0

"
31

'-0
"

18
'-6

"
2'

-0
"

6'-0"5'-6"9'-6"9'-6"5'-6"6'-0"

11'-6"19'-0"11'-6"11'-6"18'-0"

12'-6"

7'
-0

"

2'
-6

"

5'
-0

"
13

'-5
 5

/8
"

2'
-5

 1
/2

"
4'

-3
 1

/2
"

3'
-8

"
3'

-0
 5

/8
"

6'-0"

77'-6"

23'-0"12'-5 1/8"

35'-5 1/8"

41'-5 1/2"

8'-
6 3

/8
"

NO TRUSS @
CHASE AREA(2) 2X10

FLUSH

(2) 9 12"LVL
FLUSH (3) 14" LVL

DROPPED

(3) 11 7 8" LVL
FLUSH

SPORTS
CENTER

EXERCISEWET BAR

FAMILY
ROOM

STORAGE

FRAME WALL
UNDER STAIR

BEDROOM 5

SUITE
BATH 5

WIC

MECHANICAL/
STORAGE

LL HALF
BATH

GOLF
SIMULATOR

TR

TR

34
"X

48
"

TIL
E 

W
A

LL
S

&
 F

LO
O

R

3'-11 3/4"

10
'-0

"

6'
-7

 1
/2

"
4'

-1
0 

1/
2"

1'
-6

"

10
'-0

"
16

'-6
"

19
'-0

"
3'

-0
"

9'
-0

"

10
'-8

"

2X6 STUDS
16" O.C.

20"X8" FTNG

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
20"X8" FOOTING

4'
-8

"
9'

-4
 1

/2
"

10
'-8

 1
/4

"

67
'-6

"

68
'-6

"

19
'-8

 3
/4

"
2'

-1
"

6'
-4

 1
/4

"

4'
-3

"
7'

-6
 1

/4
"

2'
-0

"

3'
-5

"
8"

3'
-2

"
9 

3/
4"

6'
-5

 1
/4

"
18

'-8
 3

/4
"

2X6 BRG

2X6 BRG

(X) XX
DROPPED

2X6
3"3"

3'-7"

2X
6

2X
6

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

7'-0"

4'-8"

6"

2'-10 1/4" 4'-10 1/2" 11'-5 1/2" 1'-1"

8'-9 1/4"4'-3"1'-6"

3"

3"

3'-
10

"

13'-2" 11'-8 1/2" 29'-3 1/4"

2X
6

11'-10 3/4"7'-10"

7'
-5

"8'-8"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-2 3/4"

2'-5 1/8" 7'-10 1/8"

8"

3'
-5

 3
/4

"
4'

-6
"

5'
-1

1 
1/

4"

16
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

12
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

3-2X6

POST

3X5

POST

PT LD

PT L
D

PT L
D

POST

POST

PT L
D POST

6"
14

'-5
"

3'
-0

" 1'
-0

"

3'-0"

32"X83"
DWO

2/D3

1/D3

35

37

41

10
" S

O
FF

IT

10
" S

O
FF

IT

10
" S

O
FF

IT

10" SOFFIT

10
" S

OFF
IT

43

40

6"

6"

6"

6"

38

36 BY
PA

SS

LOWER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

ADD 6" TO TOP OF
FOUNDATION TO

RAISE GRADE

SCREEN PORCH
FRAMING ABOVE

- SEE DETAIL ON "D"

6"

PT L
D

POST

POST

3-2
X6

6'-7 1/4"

DROP THIS FLOOR 6" - SEE
SECTION C

1 R DN

3'
-3

 1
/4

"
3-2X6

POST

4'-5"

G
IR

D
ER

9'
-6

"

3080
INT. GLASS

DOOR

20"X8" FTNG

48

2X6 BRG

2'
-0

"

7'-2"

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
8" POURED CONC.

WALL 48" HIGH
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
8" POURED CONC.

WALL 48" HIGH
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

4/D3

3-4/D2

5/D2
10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

10" POURED WALL
54X12 FTG

SEE ENGINEERING PGS7
FOR DETAIL

R-10 INSULATION

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

54
X1

2 
FT

G
SE

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 P
G

 S
7

FO
R 

D
ET

A
IL

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

8"
X4

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

40
X1

0 
FT

G
SE

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 P
G

 S
7

FO
R 

D
ET

A
IL

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

2X
6 

ST
UD

S 
12

" O
.C

. @
 L

/O
30

X1
0 

FT
G

SE
E 

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 P

G
 S

8
FO

R 
D

ET
A

IL
R-

10
 IN

SU
LA

TIO
N

(2) 2X6 LSL 12" O.C.
SEE ENGINEERING
8" POURED CONC.

WALL 48" HIGH
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

2X
6 

ST
UD

S 
16

" O
.C

.
8"

 C
O

N
C

. W
A

LL
 4

2"
 H

IG
H

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

 R
-1

0 
IN

SU
LA

TIO
N CPT LVP

TB

UP 16 R
(17 TOTAL)

UP
 1

 R

LAWN
FAUCET

2-STAGE
AC UNIT

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

23
'-1

1"

5'-7 1/2"

4'-0"

EXTEND FDN & FTNG 6"
FOR POST BEARING

39

42

IMPORTANT!!
5

8" HOLD DOWN ROD IN
FOUNDATION. SEE

ENGINEERING

IMPORTANT!!
5

8" HOLD DOWN ROD IN
FOUNDATION. SEE

ENGINEERING

12
'-9

"
8'

-0
"

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

17'-10 1/2" 4'-0"
20"X8"
FTG

INSTALL SLEEVE DROP
12" FROM TOP

OF FOUNDATION

6"

40"X12" FOOTING
SEE ENGINEERING

PG S1

7'-6"
3'-4 1/2"11'-6"3'-1"

28"X12" FOOTING
SEE ENGINEERING

PG S1

30"x30"x10"
PAD FTG

30"x30"x10"
PAD FTG

24"x24"x10"
PAD FTG

36"x36"x10"
PAD FTG

24"x24"x10"
PAD FTG

48"x48"x12"
PAD FTG

(2) 2X10
FLUSH

(2
)9

 1 2"
 L

SL

42"x42"x10"
PAD FTG 42"x42"x10"

PAD FTG

POST

GAMES

HEATED
MAKEUP AIR

HUMIDIFIER HUMIDIFIER

1'-0"
CTR

AC UNIT

A
N

KL
E 

W
A

LL
@

 S
TA

IR
S 

D
O

W
N

RA
IL

MIRROR ON THIS WALL -
NO HVAC

44

BAR
7'-6"X2'-6"

3'-4"

4'
-9

"

SINK

5'
-6

"

3-2X6

6X6

4-2X6

BA
SK

ET
BA

LL
 H

O
O

P
PR

O
V

ID
E 

BL
O

C
KI

N
G

 3
6"

W
ID

E 
(M

IN
) F

RO
M

 8
6"

 T
O

12
3"

 A
N

D
 1

44
" T

O
 1

62
.5

" A
FF

SE
E 

D
TL

 2
0 

O
N

 D
5

3'-0"

1'-0"

1'-6"

2X6 ANKLE
WALL

4-2
X6

50 AMP HOT TUB
DISCONNECT

POST

GAS
LINE

96
X4

8
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P 
G

LA
SS

(N
O

T 
W

IN
D

O
W

) -
 S

ET
BO

TT
O

M
 @

 4
2"

 A
FF

SI
M

UL
A

TO
R 

SC
RE

EN
 O

N
TH

IS
 W

A
LL

(X) XX
FLUSH

2X
6

45

2'-0"

10
'-6

 3
/4

"

2'-
11

 1/
2"

6'-0"

6'
-0

"

(X) XX
DROPPED

20'-9 7 8"
TALL WALL

8" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

1'
-1

0 
1/

4"

1'
-1

0 
1/

4"

RE
C

Y

3'-0"X8'-0"
FIRE DOOR

FROM LUMBER
CO

6'X12' PAD
CENTERED UNDER

HOOP

CORNER
PAD

28

RECESS

TA
NKLE

SS

WATER
 HTR

BACKUP
SUMP

WOOD WOOD

DECK ABOVE
- SEE DETAIL ON "D"

DW

2X6 BRG

18
'-9

 1
/2

"

G
IR

D
ER

47

MIRRORED WALL
2X6 BACKERS

@ 42" FULL LENGTH
OF WALL

20'-9 7 8" +/-
WALL HT.

7"
3'

-8
"

7"
4'

-1
1"

2'
-6

"

46

4'
-9

"

4'-4" 6'
-3

 1
/4

"

2X6

2X6 BRG

LOWER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1. 8'-10" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2. 7'-8" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT @ WALKOUT UNO
3. INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING
WALLS
4. 2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
5. ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A1

LOWER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

19



A

A

25
'-7

"

C

C

B

B

D

4-
2X

6

SET THESE WDWS
7" BELOW CLG

40X96
FIXED4-

2X
6

2-
2X

648X104
FIXED-TEMP

SET THESE WDWS
ON FLOOR

2-
2X

6

36X80
CSMT

84X32
FIXED

3" BETWEEN
84X80

FIXED TEMP

3'
-0

"X
8'

-0
"

LI
FE

ST
YL

E

48
X3

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
48

X3
6

FI
XE

D
-T

EM
P

2868

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

30X24
FIXED

30X72
CSMT

3'-6"X8'-0"
W/ 12" SIDELITES

6'-0"6'-6"

48
X8

4
FI

XE
D

7 
1 2"

 B
ET

W
EE

N
48

X9
6

FI
XE

D

74
X8

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
7 

1 2"
 B

ET
W

EE
N

74
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

4'
-1

1"
6'

-7
"

4'
-1

1"

4'
-8

"
6'

-8
"

5'
-2

"

36
X8

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
7 

1 2"
 B

ET
W

EE
N

36
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

36
X8

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
7 

1 2"
 B

ET
W

EE
N

36
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

30
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
30

X9
6

FI
XE

D
-T

EM
P

30X96
FIXED-TEMP

2480

2480

26
80

 P
KT

2X
6

2680 PKT
2X6

2480
C

HA
SE

SH
EL

V
ES

LE
D

G
E

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

LEDGE

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

24
X6

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

RE
F

TO
W

ER

36
X8

5
RE

C
ES

S
36

X8
5

RE
C

ES
S

FR
EE

ZE
R

TO
W

ER

RE
C

Y
RE

F

BEV
FRIDGE

5'-2" 3'-4" 9'-4 1/2" 9'-1 1/2" 10'-0" 10'-0"
20'-0" 18'-6" 20'-0" 17'-6"

78'-0"

7'
-0

"
5'

-1
0"

2'
-3

"
1'

-1
1"

5'
-6

"
4'

-8
"

5'
-6

"
17

'-0
"

25
'-0

"
24

'-6
"

2'
-0

"

68
'-6

"

23'-0"10'-7"1'-10 1/8"

6'-0"5'-6"9'-6"9'-6"5'-6"6'-0"

6'-2"6'-10"

16' x 8' GARAGE DOOR - INSULATED

(2) 11 7 8" LVL

SEE NARROW BRACING DETAIL
EXTEND HEADERS TO CORNERS

9' x 8' GARAGE DOOR - INSULATED9' x 8' GARAGE DOOR - INSULATED

(3) 14" LVL

11'-6"19'-0"11'-6"11'-6"18'-0"

12'-6"

13'-0"4'-0"

5'
-0

"
13

'-5
 5

/8
"

8'-
6 3

/8
"

26
'-6

"

4'-
11

 3/
8"

77'-6"

MAIN LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

6'
-0

"

1'
-6

"

2'
-6

"

6'
-1

"
5'

-5
"

3'
-5

"
5'

-2
 1

/2
"

5'
-2

 1
/2

"
2'

-8
"

5'
-7

 5
/8

"
8'

-0
"

5'
-4

 3
/8

"

3'-0"

1'-6"

4'
-5

"
4'

-7
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

16
'-6

"
19

'-0
"

3'
-0

"
9'

-0
"

GRAND ENTRY

EXECUTIVE OFFICE

RECEPTION HALF
BATH

WIC

BACK
HALL

MUDROOM

PREP
KITCHENKITCHEN

GREAT ROOM

DINING

SUNROOM
WOOD

GARAGE

4" CONCRETE FLOOR WITH
FIBER MESH SLOPED TO DOORS
2X6 GARAGE WALLS @ 16" O.C.

POLY & INSULATE WALLS & CEILING
5

8" DRYWALL ON CEILING
1
2" DRYWALL ON WALLS

TAPE, SAND, SMOOTH CEILING
 & PRIME WALLS

D
RY

W
A

LL
LE

D
G

E
D

RY
W

A
LL

LE
D

G
E

UPPER SPORTS
CENTER

2X6
BRG

2X6 BRG

(2) 9 12" LSL
DROPPED

(2) 9 12" LVL
DROPPED

(2) 9 12" LSL DROPPED

(2) 2X10
FROM LNDG-
HANG INTO

POST

(2) 9 12" LSL
FLUSH

18
'-8

 3
/4

"
11

'-1
0 

1/
4"

1'-6 1/2"

4'-8 1/4" 3'-3 1/2" 6'-10" 1'-10" 8"

6'-1 1/2"
3'-4"

2'-10"

5'-9" 10" 1'-1" 3'-6 3/8"

5'-11"

10'-2"
2'-6 1/4"

3'-6"

2'
-5

 1
/4

"

2'-8"

7'
-3

 1
/2

"
6'

-6
 3

/4
"

13
'-1

0 
1/

4"
4'

-6
"

7 
1/

2"
8'

-2
 1

/2
"

9 
3/

4"
10

"

8"
16

'-3
 1

/2
"

8"

3"
3"

6'
-0

 3
/4

"

1'
-9

"
5'

-4
"

6'
-1

0"
3'

-9
"

7'
-4

"

LEDGE

2/D3

1/D3

9'-4 1/2"4'-5 1/2"

1'-8"

7'-9 1/2"

7'-1 3/4"

2'
-5

 3
/8

"

6'
-1

 3
/4

"
10

'-4
"

1'
-7

 1
/4

"
1'

-0
"

10
"

13
'-1

1"

DOWN 17
RISERS

UP 19
RISERS

8" RAISED CLG
W/ PERIMETER SOFFIT

LED PERIMETER SEE DETAIL

9:12 VAULT9:12 VAULT

FIREPLACE
R.O. 43"W x 36"H x 18"D
SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILSRI

D
G

E 
V

A
UL

T

51

14

4

2

3

5

16

1

6

7

11

9

10

19

52

15

12

16

FL
O

O
R 

LI
N

E 
A

BO
V

E

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

16
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

2X6 BRG2X6

POST

POST

POST

POST POST

POST

(3) 9 12" LVL
DROPPED POST

POST

ARCH
SOFFIT

PORCH

(3) 9 12" LSL-FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNER

(2) 9 12" LVL-FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNERS

6'-0"

35'-5 1/8"

41'-5 1/2"

TR

POST

G
IR

D
ER

36
X8

0
C

SM
T

36X80
CSMT

18
 1

/2
"

10"

18 1/2"
ROOF TRUSSES

@ 24" O.C.

(2
)9

 1 2"
 L

V
L

D
RO

PP
ED

(2
)9

 1 2"
 L

V
L

D
RO

PP
ED

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

48
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

PT LDPT L
D

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

GIRDER

5X
7 6X6

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

4'-0"

10
"

SE
T 

TH
ES

E 
UP

PE
R 

W
IN

D
O

W
S

24
" B

EL
O

W
 C

LG
.

SE
T 

UP
PE

R 
W

IN
D

O
W

 2
4"

BE
LO

W
 C

LG
.

SCREEN PORCH

(X
)X

X 
D

RO
PP

ED

POST

4'
-6

"
C

TR
 O

F 
BM

6'
-9

 1
/2

"
C

TR
 O

F 
BM

5'
-2

 1
/2

"
C

TR
 O

F 
BM

4-
2X

6

3'-10" 3'-10" 3'-10"

40X96
FIXED

40X96
FIXED

40X96
FIXED

48X104
FIXED-TEMP

48X104
FIXED-TEMP

48
X3

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
48

X3
6

FI
XE

D
-T

EM
P

4'
-8

"
4'

-8
"

D
RY

W
A

LL
LE

D
G

E
D

RY
W

A
LL

LE
D

G
E

30X24
FIXED

30X72
CSMT

30X24
FIXED

30X72
FIXED

SET THESE WINDOWS
9'-6" AFF

(2) 9 12" LSL-FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNER

PT L
D

1'
-6

"

6"

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

STAMPED
CONCRETE

4'-8"5'-0"

4'
-6

"

4'-3"

9'-2"
CTR OF RANGE

4'-6"

9'-5 1/2"

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

9 14 X 9 14 BEAMS MID CEILING
SEE ELEVATION 19

BLOCKING AS REQD.

EQ
UA

L
EQ

UA
L

EQ
UA

L

EQ
UA

L

11'-10"

1

STAIR AND ENTRY
TALL WALLS

SEE EINGINEERING FOR
POST AND FRAMING

REQUIREMENTS

VENT ACCESS W/
FACE FRAME

9 14 X 7 14  BEAM TIGHT TO CLG

3
4 X 5 12 RIPPED

T&G W/EASED
EDGE BOTH

SIDES BY CAB
CO. - CONFIRM

FINISH @
DESIGN MTG

8'
-8

 1
/4

"

9 
1 4 X

 5
 1 2 B

EA
M

 O
V

ER
 M

D
F

9 
1 4 X

 5
 1 2 B

EA
M

 O
V

ER
 M

D
F

9 
1 4 X

 5
 1 2 B

EA
M

 O
V

ER
 M

D
F

2'-4"

V
EN

T

FIREPLACE
R.O. 46 14"W x 49"H x 22 14"D

SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILS

TRAYRECYDWR
MICRO DW

SINK

(2
)9

 1 2"
 L

SL
-F

LU
SH

(2
)9

 1 2"
 L

SL

(X) XX-DROPPED

(3) 2X10

(X) XX

(2) 11 7 8" LVL

POST

POST

5X
7 P

SL

5X
7 P

SL

5X
5

GLU
LA

M

5X7 PSL
5X

7 P
SL

5X5GLULAM

4-2
X6

PT L
D

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

PT LD

PT LD

G
IR

D
ER

10"

10"

(2) 2X10
FROM LNDG-
HANG INTO

POST

1'-9"

V
EN

T 
FP

TH
RU

 R
O

O
F

PANTRY

WOOD CEILING

TRENCH DRAIN

TRENCH DRAIN

TRENCH DRAIN

GASFURNACE

O
PE

N
 E

N
D

C
A

PS
 @

 S
TA

IR
S

G
O

IN
G

 U
P

ANKLE
WALL

@ STAIRS
DN

SH
LV

S

RAIL

RAIL

RAIL

RA
IL

RA
IL

RA
IL

RA
IL

3'-0 1/2" 7'-9" 8"

FA
LS

E 
BA

C
K

SH
EL

V
ES

D

LAWN
FAUCET
W/ HOT
WATER

WOOD TILE

SMOOTH CEILING:
ENTIRE MAIN LEVEL

SMOOTH CEILING:
ENTIRE MAIN LEVEL

D
BL

 2
68

0 
RO

LL
ER

FI
EL

D
 M

UL
LE

D
 T

O
30

X9
6 

W
D

W
S

SUPPLIED BY
INT DOOR CO.

6X6

POST

4-2X6

5X7

3-2
X6

4-2
X6

RAIL

2'-10 1/2"

4-2
X6

DW
FINISH

9'
-2

"

9'-0"
5'-9 1/2"

BASE BOARD TRIM & EPOXY @
BASE BOARDS & FLOOR

POST

8'-3"

BACKING @
PENDANTS

TOP WINDOW
TRIM DTL
12/D4

TOP WINDOW
TRIM DTL
12/D4

TOP WINDOW
TRIM DTL
12/D4

UNDER
COUNTER

OVEN

6'
-0

"
18

'-6
"

2'-0"

8" 5 3/8"

2X4 LSL FLAT
ATTACHED W/ 6"
LEDGER LOCK

EVERY 2'

LED LIGHTS
ON LEDGE

TYP. DETAIL
@ GRT RM

4"

FINISH DIMS

GAS
LINE

WOOD

WOOD

POST

2'-
0"

4'-6 3/4"

SH
LV

S
43

X7
2

RE
C

ES
S

BALL STORAGE
BELOW

18/D4

18
/D

4

MAIN FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1. 10'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2. 8'-7 18" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3. 2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
4. INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING &
KITCHEN WALLS
5. 20 MINUTE FIRE DOOR @ GARAGE TO HOUSE
6. ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A2

MAIN FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

20



A

A

C

C

B

B

D D

2-
2X

684X66
FIXED2-

2X
636X66

CSMT

(2) 9 12" LSL

(2)-42X84
FIXED-TEMP

30X72
FIXED-TEMP

OBSCURE GLASS

32
X4

2
C

SM
T

32
X4

2
C

SM
T

36
X7

2
FI

XE
D

M
UL

LE
D

28X48
CSMT

30X72
FIXED

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

36X66
CSMT

36
X7

2
C

SM
T

M
UL

LE
D

36
X7

2
C

SM
T

M
UL

LE
D

(4) - 28X36
FIXED

30X72
CSMT

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

DBL 2468

ASTRIGAL

DBL 2468

ASTRIGAL

2468

24
68

 P
KT

CURB

2468

24
68

 P
KT

2868

24
68

 P
KT

2668

2468 PKT

32
"X

83
"

D
W

O
24

68
 P

KT

2468 PKT

2468

2668

2668

24
68

 P
KT

32"X83"
DWO

2'-10"

23'-0"

DRWS

DRWS

DRWS

DRWS

DRWS

JETTED TUB
67X31

WASHER ALWAYS
ON LEFT

D
RW

S
TR

D
RW

S
TR

TR TR

34"X48"
TILE WALLS
& FLOOR

DRWS
TR

TB

TB

TB

TB

RAIL

OWNER'S
BATH

8:12 VAULT8:12 VAULT

RI
D

G
E 

V
A

UL
T

FL
A

T 
C

LG

FLAT
CLG

12" RAISED CLNG
W/ PERIMETER SOFFIT

SMOOTH CEILING
LED PERIMITER SEE DETAIL

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

WIC

TO BE
DESIGNED

WIC

TO BE
DESIGNED

WIC

6" RAISED

OWNERS SUITE

GRAND
HALL

DOWN 19
RISERS

LE
D

G
E

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

10"WX5"T
WOOD
BEAMS
15/D4

W
O

O
D

 B
EA

M
S EQUAL 10" EQUAL

WOOD

2'
-6

"
TY

P

2'-6"
TYP

2'-6"

3"

4'-
3"

6" 
SO

FF
IT

23

24

4"
 D

EE
P 

X 
42

" T
A

LL
 L

ED
G

E
Q

UA
RT

Z 
TO

P16
" D

EE
P 

X
20

" T
A

LL
BE

N
C

H

20
X6

0
FI

XE
D

 S
HW

R
G

LA
SS

25

LINEN

30

29

WIC

WIC

LAUNDRY

LINEN
TO BE

DESIGNED

6" 
SO

FF
IT

3"

3'-
4"

6"
 S

O
FF

IT

3"
3'

-2
"

3"

3"

3" 3'-0"

6" SOFFIT

33

6"

9"
5'

-1
 1

/2
"

9"

6"
 S

O
FF

IT

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

3"
2'-9"

3"

6" SOFFIT

DN 2 R

32

31

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 2

SUITE
BATH 2 BEDROOM 3

SUITE
BATH 3

BU
D

D
Y

BU
N

K

SUITE
BATH 4
31

D
BL

 2
46

8
RO

LL
ER

42"

DRYWALL

LEDGE W/

WOOD CAP

9'-4" 9'-0" 5'-10 1/8" 5'-5 7/8" 3'-11 1/2" 3'-9"

3'-4" 4'-3" 9'-10 1/2"11'-4" 7'-8 1/2"1'-8"

20'-0" 19'-0 1/2" 17'-5 1/2"

18'-4"

3'-3"

15'-6"

72'-0"

3'
-0

 3
/4

"
9'

-6
"

3'
-7

"

16
'-1

 3
/4

"
2'

-4
"

8'
-9

 1
/4

"
8'

-9
 1

/4
"

17
'-6

 1
/2

"
8'

-0
"

24
'-5

 1
/2

"
3'

-0
"

53
'-0

"

6'-10"9'-5"

2'-0"6'-2"

8'-1"5'-0"6'-2"6'-6"

13'-1"1'-4"12'-8"

18'-3"

16'-3"

19'-3"3'-0"14'-0"13'-0"3'-0"

3"

3'
-0

"
2'

-6
"

6'
-1

"
5'

-5
"

3'
-5

"
5'

-2
 1

/2
"

5'
-2

 1
/2

"
2'

-8
"

3'
-0

"
19

'-0
"

16
'-6

"
11

'-6
"

2'
-6

"

UPPER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

18'-4" 11'-5 5/16" 2'-8 7/16" 10" 3'-7 1/4"

4'-1"3'-6"3'-10 1/2"6'-9 3/4"3'-6 7/8"6'-11 7/8"6'-0 1/2"1'-11 1/2"

3'-2"

2X6

2X
6

3'-2 1/2"4'-3 1/2"11'-11 1/2"1'-2"4'-3 1/2"12'-3 3/4" 1'-6 1/4"

9'-5 1/2"
FIRST R DN

4'
-8

"
4'

-7
 1

/2
"

5'-4"

1'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

6"
5'

-0
"

6'
-2

 1
/4

"
5'

-2
"

7'
-2

 3
/4

"
6'

-1
 3

/4
"

4'
-2

"

5'
-6

"

10
'-4

"
1'

-9
 1

/4
"

3'
-9

"

15
'-1

0 
1/

4"
6"

14
'-7

 1
/4

"
1'

-3
"

6"
7'

-0
"

2'
-4

 7
/8

"

8'-0" 8'-3 3/4"2'-3"

3'-7 1/2" 8'-8 1/4"

2'
-9

"
2'

-3
 1

/4
"

7'
-4

"

7'
-7

 1
/2

"
1'

-2
"

4'
-0

 1
/2

"
7 

1/
2"

4'
-1

"

3'
-0

 1
/2

"
3'

-4
 1

/4
"

4'
-1

"

10
'-6

 1
3/

16
"

2'-1 1/2"

3'
-4

 1
/4

"
5'

-0
"

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

GIRDER

4-2
X6

6X6
4-2X6

3-2X6

BUILD EXT.
WALL PER PLAN
THEN BUILD THE

SECTION BETWEEN
GABLES OUT 15" TO

A 9" O.H.

SET THESE WDWS
ON FLOOR

30X72
CSMT

SET THESE WINDOWS
7'-6" AFF

28X48
CSMT

28X48
FIXED

FRAME
THIS WALL
@ 7'-5 14"

G
IR

D
ER

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

4:12 VAULT

4:
12

 V
A

UL
T

RIDGE VAULT

4:
12

 V
A

UL
T

BUILD WALLS
TO VAULT

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

2X6

2X4
FUR WALL

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

12" RAISED

2'-6"

2'
-6

"
7'

-7
 1

/2
"

7'-7 1/2" 2'-6"

GRAND
ENTRY

VOLUME

7"

22

2'
-0

"

GIRDER

GIRDER

(2) 9 12" LSL(2) 9 12" LSL

STAIR AND ENTRY
TALL WALLS

SEE EINGINEERING FOR
POST AND FRAMING

REQUIREMENTS

HEATED
FLOOR

SMOOTH
CLG

SMOOTH
CLG

SMOOTH
CLG

WOOD

TIL
E 

TO
 &

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

C
LG

WD

CPT

WOOD

5'
-1

1 
3/

4"

O
PE

N
 E

N
D

C
A

PS
 @

 S
TA

IR
S

G
O

IN
G

 U
P

7'-
1 5

/8
"

6"

2'
-4

"

DRYWALL

TIL
E

FI
N

IS
H

SET BOTTOM
@ 24" AFF

RA
IL

RA
IL

6'-5 1/4"

4 5/8"

7 3/8"

5"

LED
LIGHTS

ON LEDGE
FINISH DIMS

LEDGE
FRAMED @

4 12" W X 3 12" T

TYP. DETAIL
@ OBR

2'-6"

SLOPE CLG
DN 1"

PIVOT GLASS
ABOVE
DOOR

SMOOTH
CLG

5'-11 1/2"

30" OPNG

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

HAND
HELD

DIVERTER FOR
HAND HELD

BONUS
ROOM

6" SOFFIT

4'-10 1/2"

SHOWER VALVES
CENTERED BELOW HEADS

ABOVE LEDGE

3'-9 1/4"

50

8'-11"

30
X6

0
C

A
ST

 IR
O

N
TIL

ED
 W

A
LL

S

34"X48"
TILE WALLS
& FLOOR

BYPASS

4"

2'
-2

"
3'

-0
"

28

RE
C

ES
S RE

C
ES

S28

28

RECESS

WOOD

WOOD

WOOD

D
RW

S

BE
V

FR
ID

G
E

SH
EL

F

26

STRUCTURAL
GABLE

UPPER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1. 8'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2. 6'-11 3 8" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3. INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING

WALLS
4. ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER

FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

RADON MITIGATION SYSTEM
1.

A3

UPPER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

21



FRONT ELEVATION

UPPER FLOOR PLATE

UPPER FLOOR

MAIN FLOOR PLATE

MAIN FLOOR

TOP OF FOUNDATION

TOP OF FTNG

10
'-1

 1
/8

"
8'

-1
 1

/8
"

8'
-7

 1
/8

"
6'

-1
1 

3/
8"

9'
-0

"

WINDOW

WINDOW

24
 3

/4
"

24
 1

/4
"

SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

7'
-8

"

WINDOW

TOP OF FLOOR

5"

1'-3" 1'-3"

6 
13

/1
6"

HE
EL

MAIN
PLATE

GARAGE
PLATE

MAIN
FLOOR

8'
-1

 1
/8

"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-2

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

2'
-7

 1
/2

"

18
12

11
12

18
12

18
12 11

12

11
12

11
12

11
12

11
12

BUILD EXT.
WALL PER PLAN

THEN BUILD
OUT 15" TO
A 9" O.H.

7'
-3

"

6'
-2

"

STAMPED
CONCRETE

SEE COLUMN
DTL - THIS PG

2'-0"

1'-3"

2'-0"

1'-3" 1'-3"

2'-0"

1'-8"

RETURN
STONE

SADDLE

30X66
FIXED

8" STONE LINTEL

4" STONE LINTEL

30X66
FIXED

8" STONE LINTEL

4" STONE LINTEL

10" TRIM W/ 2" TRIM @ TOP
-WRAP BACK TO HOUSE THIS

SIDE ONLY

10" TRIM W/ 2" TRIM @ TOP

6'-10"

1'
-3

 1
5/

16
"

HE
EL

RETURN
PANELS

HOUSE #

8" RAKE SEE DETAIL THIS PAG
E

8" RAKE SEE DETAIL THIS PAG
E

8" RAKE SEE DETAIL THIS PAG
E

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNER

WRAP
STONE

18"

4'-0" 4'-0" 3'-6" 4'-0"4'-0"3'-6"

6'
-8

 3
/4

"

21/D5

21/D5

5'-0"

4'
-0

"

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERSRAIL @

BACK OF
PORCH

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

GUTTERS

METAL ROOF

METAL ROOF

GUTTERS GUTTERS

SIDING @
GABLE END

6"

6"
 T

RI
M

5
12

5
12

3'
-7

"

1'-3"

1'-3"

34
'-1

1 
13

/1
6"

7 
1/

8"

BALL
STORAGE

PLATE

6'
-6

 1
/8

"

ELEVATION NOTES
FRONT:
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5

4"X6" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. SEE DETAIL 10/D4 FOR CORNERS U.N.O.
4. NOTE: FILL IN OPENINGS OVER ALL BRACKETS
5. SHIP FRONT DOOR W/ NO BRICK MOULD
6. BOARD & BATTEN @ 24" OC SPACING U.N.O.

SIDES AND REAR (PER NEIGHBORHOOD):
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5

4"X4" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

6x6 POST 15
 1

/4
"

CEDAR PANEL

BLOCKING
AS NEEDED

7
16 CEDAR
PANEL

MAIN

15 1/4"

17 3/4"

PORCH COLUMN
SCALE : 1/2" = 1'-0"

MITER
CORNERS

10
'-2

"
C

O
N

FI
RM

 D
IM

 O
N

 F
RO

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N

HEADER
PER PLAN

SMOOTH
FINISH

6/D3

ALUM SOFFIT
& FASCIA

*SEE ELEVATION & SECTIONS
FOR ROOF PITCHES, ETC

7 1/4"

3/4"

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)REAR ELEVATION

SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

12
12

9
12

10
'-2

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

11
12

11
12

11
12

11
12

6
12

8
12

6
12

6
12

6" 9"

3 12

4
12

1'-3"

1'-3"

1'
-2

 3
/8

"
HE

EL

MAIN
PLATE6 

13
/1

6"
HE

EL

2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"

1'-6" 1'-3"

1'-3"

2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"

1'-3"1'-3"6"

2'-0"

1'-0"

SADDLE

4
12

SADDLE ON
OTHER SIDE OF

SUNROOM
BONUS ROOM

FLOOR LINE

8
12

3'
-8

" 5'-11"

BEAMS IN ROOM
11'-10"

EXTEND FOUNDATION
WALL AND FOOTING 6"

FOR POST BEARING

OBSCURE
GLASS

10" TRIM

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERS

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6" TRIM

6" TRIM

6" TRIM
6" TRIM

6" TRIM

6" TRIM6" TRIM

6" TRIM 6" TRIM 6" TRIM

6" TRIM

8"
 T

RI
M

GUTTERS GUTTERS GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS

GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

5
12

5
12

3:12
SADDLE

BIRD'S
MOUTH

1'-3"

1'-0"

1'-3" 1'-3"

2'-0"

4
12

8
12

5
12

1'-0 1/2"

BALL
STORAGE

PLATE

6'
-6

 1
/8

"

MAIN
FLOOR

44
'-2

 5
/1

6"

2X6

SCALE :: 1" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 12" = 1'-0" (11X17)

8" RAKE
1

FLASHING

ROOF
SHTG

SOFFIT
PANEL

3/4 X 10
XLD

3
4 x 1-1/2"

FURRING

A4

ELEVATIONS

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

22



ELEVATION NOTES
FRONT:
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5

4"X6" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. SEE DETAIL 10/D4 FOR CORNERS U.N.O.
4. NOTE: FILL IN OPENINGS OVER ALL BRACKETS
5. SHIP FRONT DOOR W/ NO BRICK MOULD
6. BOARD & BATTEN @ 24" OC SPACING U.N.O.

SIDES AND REAR (PER NEIGHBORHOOD):
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5

4"X4" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

12
12

UPPER FLOOR

6'
-1

 1
/8

"

1'-6"

10"

1'-3"

6
12

6
12

1'-3" 1'-3"

1'-3"

2'-0"1'-3"

2'-0"

1'-6"

15 1/4"

9"

4
12

BUILDOUT
& SADDLE
BETWEEN
GABLES

10" TRIM

2'-6"

10" TRIM

10" TRIM

10" TRIM

10" TRIM ON
THIS FACE

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERS

STONE
WRAP 18"

(HIDDEN BY
COLUMN)

6" TRIM

6" TRIM

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

8"
 T

RI
M

8" TRIM

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS

GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

1'-3"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-2

"

A4.1

ELEVATIONS

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

23



800 County Road E East, Vadnais Heights, MN 55127 
www.vlawmo.org 

TO: Kevin Kress 

FROM:  Brian Corcoran Vadnais Lake Area WMO (VLAWMO) 

DATE:  March 9, 2023 

SUBJECT: Comments – 8 Sherwood Trail - Driveway 

Please find below, per your request, the VLAWMO “advisory” comments for 8 Sherwood Trail – Driveway, received 
3-8-2023.  These comments are advisory only given that VLAWMO does not operate a regulatory program for
development review with exception of the Wetland Conservation Act (WCA). Our Water Management policy and
standards have been adopted and are enforced by our respective City’s and Township.

• A MN Routine Assessment Method (MNRAM) worksheet was completed on 4/6/2020, which
identifies management classes for each wetland on site. 8 Sherwood Trail wetlands (W9 & W7) are
Manage 2 wetlands. Base buffer width of 30ft, Applied buffer with of 24ft. See below table:

• Per the Buffer section in the Water Management Policy (chapter 11 “Buffers” starting on pg 26) The
buffer width may vary based on demonstrated site constraints, provided that a width of at least 50
percent of the applied buffer width is maintained (in this case that would be 12ft). See section 5 in
chapter 11 Buffers.

Brian Corcoran 

Management Class Base Buffer Width (ft)  Minimum Applied Buffer Width (ft) 
Manage 3: Storm Ponds 20 16 
Manage 2 30 24 
Manage 1 40 34 
Preserve 75 67 

24



February 14, 2024

Kendra Lindahl, AICP
City Planner

Via E-mail: KLindahl@landform.net

RE: 8 Sherwood Trail
Sambatek Project No. 51986

Dear Kendra: 

I have reviewed the Conditional Use Permit request for the overall building height for this parcel.

The proposed home location requires the driveway to be located between 2 existing wetlands.   
City Ordinance requires a 30-foot setback from all wetlands.  This condition cannot be met and I 
am recommending denial of this request.

Sincerely,
Sambatek, LLC

Michael J. Nielson, PE
City Engineer

CC: Kevin Kress, Administrator

25

mailto:KLindahl@landform.net


 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nicholas Ouellette through Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  February 29, 2024 
 
RE: PUBLIC HEARING. Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess of 35 

feet at 1 Sherwood Trail 
 

Date Application Submitted   December 26, 2023 

Date Application Determined Complete: January 4, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   March 14, 2024 

120-day Review Date:   April 24, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Mark Englund of Hansen Homes has requested approval of a conditional use permit to allow the 
construction of a new home at 1 Sherwood Trail to be 40 feet and 7 inches in height, greater 
than 35 feet in height permitted in the City Code. The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well 
as building elevations, a survey and a site plan for the proposed structure. 

 

 

 

 

 

26



 

 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently undeveloped. The property 
is in the East Preserve development.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Homes greater than 35 feet in 
height are subject to the conditional use permit 
(CUP) standards and process in Section 
151.050(D.7) (conditional uses), Section 
151.076 (CUP review criteria) and Section 
151.079 (CUP procedure) of the Zoning Code.  

The 1.96-acre property is located at the northeast corner of Sherwood Trail and Sherwood Road 
(County Road 4).  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Setbacks  

The proposed single-family home exceeds the 30-foot minimum setback requirements at all 
property lines and street easements. The front elevation is set back 60.7 feet from the roadway 
easement and the side and rear elevations are setback more than 100 feet from the adjacent 
property lines. 

Height 

The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow the eastside elevation of the proposed home to 
exceed 35 feet in height. Elevations provided by the applicant show the proposed home to be 
40 feet and 7 inches in height along the eastern-side facade. The front, western-side and rear 
facades of the home are 35 feet in height. Building height is defined as the vertical distance 
from grade as defined herein to the top ridge of the highest roof surface in Section 151.005 of 
the Zoning Code. 

Size 

The footprint of the house is 3,208 square feet. A FAR worksheet has not been provided with 
the application. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the 
time of review by the Building Official. 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

27



 

 

Building Height CUP 

To allow a conditional use permit for a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.05(D.7) 
of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered: 

1. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point; 
 
The proposed front elevation does not exceed 35 feet at any point. 
 

2. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet; 
 
The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building the single-family 
home are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level along 
the eastern-side facade. 
 

3. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are 
naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level; 
 
Based on review of the plans, topography of the site and Ramsey County GIS, the proposed 
home and walkout level appear conducive to the site’s natural layout. Prior to construction, 
the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does 
not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site 
visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 
 

4. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

 
The proposed home is two full stories with a basement.  

 
5. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of 

adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent 
setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and 

 
The proposed western-side and rear elevations are a maximum of 35 feet tall. The eastern-side 
elevation is 40 feet and 7 inches in height and is setback approximately 123 feet from the east 
property line where a 40 foot side yard setback would be required due to the increased height. 

 
6. Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

The applicant has complied with the fees associated with Section 151.083. 

28



 

 

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
conditional use permit request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff 
has reviewed the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The proposed single-family should not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 

neighborhood; 
 
The proposed single-family home use will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns.  

29



 

 

7. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
9. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
As proposed, the use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
10. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Survey dated December 26, 2023 

Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative dated December 26, 2023 

Exhibit C: Building elevations dated December 26, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow construction of a single family home exceeding 35 feet in height at 1 Sherwood Trail, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received on December 26, 

2023. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before the issuance of a 
building permit. The building plan application shall contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting construction 
disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed downstream of all proposed 
grading, in order to ensure proper containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be 
taken to maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation due to 
grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in the deposit of 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of construction.  

a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review 
by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement. 

 
6. All lighting on the single-family home shall be downcast and shielded in accordance with Section 

151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
8. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district rules and 

regulations. 
 

 
 
 
 

31



 

 

 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  
In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has the 
following options:  
 
A) Recommend approval of the application with conditions, based on the applicant's 

submission, the contents of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the 
Planning Commission.  
 

• This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 
to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions.  
 

B) Recommend denial of the application with findings for denial clearly articulated. 
 

C) Recommend continuance of the application review based on the need for more 
information in which to process the request.  

 
 

32



33



34



35



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nicholas Ouellette through Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  February 29, 2024 
 
RE: PUBLIC HEARING. Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess of 35 

feet at 2 Sherwood Trail 
 

Date Application Submitted   January 25, 2024 

Date Application Determined Complete: February 2, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   March 14, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    March 25, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Mark Englund of Hansen Homes has requested approval of a conditional use permit to allow the 
construction of a new home at 2 Sherwood Trail to be 39.63 feet in height where 35 feet is the 
maximum height permitted in the City Code. The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well as 
building elevations, a survey and a site plan for the proposed structure. 

 

 

 

 

 

36



 

 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently undeveloped. The property 
is in the East Preserve development.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Homes greater than 35 feet in 
height are subject to the conditional use permit 
(CUP) standards and process in Section 
151.050(D.7) (conditional uses), Section 
151.076 (CUP review criteria) and Section 
151.079 (CUP procedure) of the Zoning Code.  

The 3.75-acre property is located at the southeast corner of Sherwood Trail and Sherwood 
Road (County Road 4).  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Setbacks  

The proposed single-family home exceeds the 30-foot minimum setback requirements at all 
property lines and street easements. The front elevation is setback 33.5 feet from the roadway 
easement and the side and rear elevations are setback more than 80 feet from the adjacent 
property lines. 

Height 

The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow the southern (rear) elevation of the proposed home 
to exceed 35 feet in height. Elevations provided by the applicant show the proposed home to be 
39.63 inches in height along the rear facade. The front and side facades of the home are 34.8 
feet in height. Building height is defined as the vertical distance from grade as defined herein to 
the top ridge of the highest roof surface in Section 151.005 of the Zoning Code. 

Size 

The footprint of the house is 2,808 square feet. A FAR worksheet has not been provided with 
the application. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the 
time of review by the Building Official. 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

37



 

 

Building Height CUP 

To allow a conditional use permit for a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.05(D.7) 
of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered: 

1. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point; 
 
The proposed front elevation does not exceed 35 feet at any point. 
 

2. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet; 
 
The building height at the rear and side elevations does not exceed 45 feet. 
 

3. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are 
naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level; 
 
Based on review of the plans, topography of the site and Ramsey County GIS, the proposed 
home and lookout level appear conducive to the site’s natural layout. Prior to construction, 
the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does 
not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site 
visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 
 

4. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

 
The proposed home is two full stories with a basement.  

 
5. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of 

adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent 
setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and 

 
The proposed front and side elevations are a maximum of 35 feet tall. The rear elevation is 39.63 in 
height and is setback more than 100 feet from the south and east property line where a 40 foot side 
yard setback would be required due to the increased height. 

 
6. Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

The applicant has complied with the fees associated with Section 151.083. 

38



 

 

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
conditional use permit request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff 
has reviewed the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The proposed single-family should not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 

neighborhood; 
 
The proposed single-family home use will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns.  

39



 

 

7. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
9. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
As proposed, the use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
10. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Location Map 

Exhibit B: Site Survey dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit D: Building elevations dated January 25, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

40



 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow construction of a single family home exceeding 35 feet in height at 2 Sherwood Trail, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received on January 25, 

2024. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before the issuance of a 
building permit. The building plan application shall contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting construction 
disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the dripline.  

 
4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed downstream of all proposed 
grading, in order to ensure proper containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be 
taken to maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation due to 
grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in the deposit of 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of construction.  

a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review 
by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement. 

 
6. All lighting on the single-family home shall be downcast and shielded in accordance with Section 

151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
8. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district rules and 

regulations. 
 

 
 

41



 

 

 
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  
In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has the 
following options:  
 
A) Recommend approval of the application with conditions, based on the applicant's 

submission, the contents of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the 
Planning Commission.  
 

• This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 
to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions.  
 

B) Recommend denial of the application with findings for denial clearly articulated. 
 

C) Recommend continuance of the application review based on the need for more 
information in which to process the request.  

 
 

42



Map Ramsey

Personal Property

Tax Parcels

Cities

County Offices

2/6/2024, 10:44:13 AM

0 0.4 0.80.2 mi

0 0.6 1.20.3 km

1:16,000

Ramsey County
Ramsey County MN

43



44



45



LOWER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

DRYWALL LEDGE(X) XX - FLUSH

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
8" CONC. WALL 42" HIGH

20"X8" FOOTING R-10 INSULATION

10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

5/D2

10
" P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

9'-2" M.O.

16'-2" M.O.

2'
-0

"

9'-2" M.O.

8"
X4

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

54
"X

12
" F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

2X6 BRG

2X6 BRG

34"X48"
TILE FLOOR &

WALLS TO CLG

DRYWALL LEDGE

36X54
FIXED

36X54
FIXED

2-
2X

6

(X) XX - FLUSH

36X54
FIXED

2-
2X

6 36X42
CSMT

36X42
CSMT

2-
2X

6 36X42
FIXED

36X54
CSMT

36X54
CSMT

2868

3068

96
X4

8
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
G

LA
SS

 - 
N

O
T

W
IN

D
O

W
 - 

SE
T

42
" A

FF 3068

2668

2468

3"

2468

2468 PKT

UP 16
RISERS

FURNACE

ER
V

WATER
METER SUMPWH

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
20"X8" FOOTING

FD

V
ER

IF
Y 

LC
TN

IN
 F

IE
LD

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

1'
-8

"

4'-4"

LINEN

DRWS

DRWS

TB

TR

10
" S

O
FF

IT

2468

SHELVES

SH
&

RD

FAMILY ROOM

WET BAR

LL
BATH

LL BEDROOM 5

FUTURE
SAUNA

FINISHED
STORAGEEXERCISE

GAMES

MECH/
STORAGE

8'-3" 7'-11" 3'-3" 6'-9" 4'-5" 2'-1" 8'-6" 3'-2"

30'-7" 5'-8" 13'-9"

50'-0" 13'-0"

63'-0"

10
'-5

"
5'

-7
"

16
'-0

"
12

'-6
"

24
'-6

"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

30" CANT
ABOVE

9'-0"

22'-0"19'-5 1/2"

9'-0"10'-5 1/2"

3'
-6

"

16
'-6

"
4'

-6
"

4'
-0

"

5'-11"5'-1"10'-0"10'-0"5'-1"

11'-0"20'-0"10'-3"

5'-11"

7'-6"12'-6"8'-0"

28'-9"

4'
-6

"
5'

-6
"

10
'-0

"

34
'-6

"
17

'-0
"

1'-4 1/2"

4'-3 1/2"

12
'-8

"
3'

-1
1 

3/
4"

6'
-0

 1
/4

"
9'

-4
"

16
'-7

 3
/4

"
15

'-4
 1

/4
"

57
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

14
'-3

"
3'

-1
1 

1/
2"

3'
-1

1 
1/

2"
9'

-8
 1

/4
"

6'-8"

17'-1" 13'-11" 9'-0"

3'-0"
13'-4 3/4" 6" 1'-1" 10'-5" 2'-0 1/2"

3'
-0

 1
/4

"
3"

1'-9"

4'-2"

3'
-2

 3
/8

"

7'
-5

"
10

'-2
 1

/4
"

SH
EL

F

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

3-4/D2

8" POURED WALL
VERIFY HT IN FLD.
20"X8" FOOTING

2X6 BRG

2X6 BRG
2X6 BRG

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

14
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

3/D3

2'-10"

(X) XX - DROPPED

(X) XX - DROPPED

(X) XX - FLUSH

G
IR

D
ER

(X) XX
FLUSH

40" HIGH
HALF WALL

5/D4

(X) XX

(X) XX DROPPED 8" (X) XX DROPPED 8"

(X) XX

POST

POST
POST POST

5'-0"

9'-2"
1ST R UP

CODE RAIL

LAWN
FAUCET

AC UNIT

HOT WATER
CIRCULATING

PUMP

A

A

B

B

CC
POST

POST

POST

POST

PT L
D PT LD

PT LD

PT LD

PT L
D

POSTPOST

POST

44 43

FLOOR BREAK
LINE

FL
O

O
R 

BR
EA

K
LI

N
E

D
RW

R
D

W

42

38

C
HA

SE
 A

BO
V

E

WALL
UNDER
STAIRS

D
EC

K 
A

BO
V

E

20
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
S

@
 1

9.
2"

 O
.C

.

7'
-3

"
5'

-5
"

3'
-1

1 
3/

4"

BE
V

FR
ID

G
E

IC
E

1'-2"

SH
EL

V
ES

15
"

RE
C

Y

2'-3"

9'-8"
BYPASS

1'
-1

0 
3/

4"

PA
N

TR
Y

C
A

B

3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

LOWER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  8'-2" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  7'-0" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT @ WALKOUT UNO
3.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING
WALLS
4.  2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
5.  ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A1

LOWER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

46



MAIN LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

V
EN

T

30X96
FIXED

SET THESE
WINDOWS @ 6"
BELOW CLNG

30X96
FIXED

30X96
FIXED

30X96
FIXED

36X64 36X64 30X64

36X72 36X7236X72

60
X7

2
FI

XE
D

36
X7

2
36

X7
2

6'-0"X8'-0"
SGD

2'
-8

"X
6'

-1
0"

LI
FE

ST
YL

E
2'

-8
"X

6'
-1

0"
LI

FE
ST

YL
E

2868
20 MIN DR
3 RISERS

4'-0"
CLEAR

3'-0"X8'-0"

16' x 8' OHD - INSULATED

SEE NARROW BRACING DETAIL
EXTEND HEADERS TO CORNERS

(X) XX
9'X8' OHD - INSULATED

(X) XX

(X) XX
9'X8' OHD - INSULATED

32X72
CSMT 2-

2X
6 32X72

CSMT

30
X4

8
36

X7
2-

2

24
80

 D
BL

RO
LL

ER
4'

-0
"

2X
6

42"
WALL

2X
6

2480

TR

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

2-2X6

2-2X6

(X) XX
DROP

(X) XX
DROP

POST

POST

POST

POST

RAIL

UP 19
RISERS

DN 16
RISERS

CODE RAIL

6'-8"

12'-6"
1ST R UP

2X6 BRG
RAIL

RAILRAIL

(X) XX
FLUSH

SEE ENGINEERING
PG S8 FOR TALL
WALL FRAMING

40
X6

0
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

2K

2K

32
X9

6 
BA

RN
D

O
O

R
2480

2880

SINK

3"

BENCH

SINK

2'
-5

"

43"X72"
RECESS

MICRO/
OVEN

REF

SH&RD

SH
&

RD

GREAT
ROOM

FIREPLACE
R.O. 43"W x 36"H x 18"D
SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILS

1'
-6

"

8" 5 3/8"

2X4 LSL FLAT
ATTACHED W/ 6"
LEDGER LOCK

EVERY 2'

LED LIGHTS
ON LEDGE

TYP. DETAIL
@ GR & KT

4"

FINISH DIMS

1'-4"

1'
-6

"

4'-0"

GAS

FURNACE

GARAGE
4" CONCRETE FLOOR WITH

FIBER MESH SLOPED TO DOORS
2X6 GARAGE WALLS @ 16" O.C.

5
8" DRYWALL ON CEILING
1
2" DRYWALL ON WALLS

INSULATE WALLS & CEILING

9:
12

 V
A

UL
T

9:
12

 V
A

UL
T

RIDGE VAULT

DINETTE

KITCHEN

SUNROOM

PREP
PANTRY

FO
O

D
PA

N
TR

Y

CANINE
CORNER

MUDROOM

WIC

ENTRY

STUDY

HALF
BATH

GRILL
DECK

5'-0"

1

2

3

4

3'
-0

"

7'-6"

1'
-7

"
2'

-2
"

3"

2X
6

2X6 2X6

LINE OF STONE

SIDING INSIDE
THESE WALLS

PORCH

4'-3" 2'-9" 2'-9" 2'-9" 2'-0" 2'-11" 3'-3" 2'-7" 5'-3" 5'-6" 6'-6 1/4" 7'-3"

2X
6

2X
6

5

6

7

8

11

12 1615

17

18

19

13'-9 1/4"2'-2 3/4"10'-9"8'-9"

14'-6" 19'-6" 16'-0" 13'-0"

63'-0"

8'
-0

"
8'

-0
"

3'
-1

0"
4'

-7
"

2'
-0

"
2'

-1
"

8'
-5

"
4'

-1
"

3'
-6

"

2'
-6

"
16

'-0
"

12
'-6

"
24

'-6
"

2'
-0

"

57
'-6

"

9'-0"

22'-0"

4'
-3

"
4'

-0
"

4'
-3

"
5'-11"5'-1"10'-0"10'-0"5'-1"5'-2"

2 1/2"
1'-7 1/2"5'-1"1'-7"11'-5"7'-10"1'-0"

11'-0"20'-0"10'-3"8'-6"20'-3"

70'-0"

4'
-0

"
4'

-6
"

14
'-3

"
2'

-3
"

21
'-0

"

22'-0"

7'-6"11'-11 1/2"

19'-5 1/2"

1'-0"

3'
-4

"
1'

-1
1"

3'
-1

1 
1/

2"
3'

-1
1 

1/
2"

4'
-1

0"
4'

-7
"

2X6 BRG

12
'-0

"
5'

-3
"

7'
-1

1"
9'

-5
"

5'
-8

 1
/2

"
5'

-6
"

5'
-8

 1
/2

"

16
'-1

1"
34

'-7
"

10
'-0

"

5'
-6

"

8'-0"

59
'-6

"

12'-6"

3'-9"3'-9"
4'-9 1/2"2'-11"4'-9 1/2"

7'-1" 5'-1 3/4" 8'-3 3/4" 41'-5 1/2"

1'-11 1/2"
6'-4 1/4"

3'
-1

1 
1/

2"
3'

-1
1 

1/
2"

6'
-0

"
1'

-7
"

5'
-4

 1
/4

"

5'
-3

 1
/4

"
2'

-6
"

11
"

2'
-1

"

3"

4'-2"

4'
-6

"

16
'-7

 3
/4

"

2X6 BRG 2X6
BRG

7'-6"4'-0"4'-0"5'-11"

6"

3"

5'-0"4'-0"

13'-9"2'-9"4'-0"9'-6"
9'-2 5/8"

6'-0 5/16"

3'
-0

 1
/2

"

1'-6 1/2"
16'-3 1/4" 6"

1'
-0

"
6'

-6
"

1'
-7

"

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

FL
O

O
R 

LI
N

E 
A

BO
V

E

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

A

A

B

B

CC

9'
-8

 1
/4

"

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

46
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

8" RAISED CLG W/
PERIMETER SOFFIT

2X6

(X) XX - FLUSH

8'
-3

"
TO

 C
TR

 O
F 

RA
N

G
E

G
IR

D
ER

(X) XX FLUSHPOST

POST POST

(X) XX DROPPED 10"POST

POST
POST

POST(X) XX FLUSH (X) XX

POST (X) XX
FLUSH

POST

(X) XX
DROPPED

(X
) X

X
D

RO
PP

ED

(X) XX
DROPPED

(X
) X

X
D

RO
P

(X
) X

X
D

RO
P

CODE RAIL

LAWN
FAUCET

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

3-4/D2

PT LD
PT LD

PT LD
PT LD

(X) XX - FLUSH

POST

POST

4'-10 1/2" 4'-10 1/2"

(X) XX FLUSH

G
IR

D
ER

RA
N

G
ET

O
P

SET THESE
WINDOWS @ 14"

BELOW CLNG

SET THESE
WINDOWS @ 14"

BELOW CLNG

7'-6"

34
33

DINING

2'
-4

"

MELAMINE
SHELVES

C
HA

SE

7'
-0

"

1'-6"

30X6430X64 2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

D
W

R
M

IC
RO

10

9

32"Xxx"
RECESS

6'-9 1/4"

WINE
REF

SHELVES

24
80

 P
KT

3"
2X

6
18

/D
4

2'
-4

"

FIREPLACE
R.O. 43"W x 36"H x 18"D
SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILS

DWRE
C

Y

44
"X

20
"X

4"
D

RE
C

ES
S

TRENCH DRAIN

TRENCH DRAINTRENCH DRAIN

MAIN FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  10'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  8'-7 18" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3.  2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
4.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING &
KITCHEN WALLS
5.  20 MINUTE FIRE DOOR @ GARAGE TO HOUSE
6.  ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A2

MAIN FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

47



UPPER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

6"
6"

W
A

SH
ER

 A
LW

A
YS

O
N

 L
EF

T

2X
6 

FU
RR

 W
A

LL

28

27

DRWS

DRWS

LINEN

CODE RAIL

CODE RAIL

5'-0"
11'-8"

1ST R DN

RAIL

RA
IL

CELESTE
67X31

36" WALLS W/
48" GLASS

18" TALL TILED
BENCH

SH&RD

DRWS

D
RW

S

SH&RD

SH
&

RD

HEATED
FLOOR

SHELF

30X60
CAST IRON W/
 TILE WALLS TO

CLG

DRWS
TR

TB

SH&RD

SH&RD

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 4

J&J
BATHWIC

WIC

WIC

GREAT HALL

LINEN

LAUNDRY

OWNER'S
BEDROOM

12" RAISED CLG W/
PERIMETER SOFFIT

OWNER'S
BATH

WIC

2668

2668

24
68

 P
KT

24
68

 P
KT

24
68

 P
KT

3"
28"X83"
DWO

28"X83"
DWO

3"

2468

TB

2668

2668

3'
-1

1 
1/

4"
6"

 S
O

FF
IT

5'
-2

"
30

"X
83

"
D

W
O

6" SOFFIT

3"
3'-0"

3"

6" SOFFIT

3" 3'-0" 3"

2468

2868

8" 4'-1 1/2" 8"

6" SOFFIT

6" SOFFIT

8" 4'-1 1/2" 8"

2468 DBL
ASTRIGAL

3068

3"3"

6" SOFFIT

2468

2468

C
UR

B

C
UR

B

2X4
FURR WALL

2'-5"2'-6"2'-5"

RH RH

30
"

O
PN

G

30
"

O
PN

G

36X66 48X66
FIXED2-

2X
6

2-
2X

6

36X66 30X66
TEMP

30X66
TEMP

24
X2

4
FI

XE
D

(2) 32X60
CSMT-TEMP

40
X8

0
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

72
X3

4
FI

XE
D

(2) 36X60
CSMT

30
X3

0
FI

XE
D

3'
-1

 1
/2

"

DN 19
RISERS

7'-9 1/4" 7'-8 3/4" 4'-1" 2'-1" 2'-1" 4'-5"
15'-6" 6'-2" 7'-4" 6'-6"

35'-6" 12'-0"

2'
-1

0"
1'

-9
"

4'
-8

"
6'

-8
"

12
'-7

"
4'

-7
"

11
'-4

"

3'
-4

"
6'

-7
"

13
'-1

"

28
'-6

"
23

'-0
"

3'
-6

"

(2) 36X60
CSMT

5'-1 1/2"5'-1 1/2"8'-0"4'-4"2'-8"1'-0"4'-0"5'-0"

1'-4 1/2"
10'-3"

1'-10 1/2"
15'-0"6'-0"10'-0"3'-0"

2'-7 1/2"3'-4 1/2"

6"6"

1'
-0

"

4'
-5

"
4'

-6
"

3'
-1

0 
1/

2"
3'

-1
0 

1/
2"

17
'-6

"
8'

-1
1"

7'
-9

"
17

'-4
"

51
'-6

"
1'

-0
"

52
'-6

"

55
'-0

"

2'-6"
TYP

2'
-6

"
TY

P
7'-0"4'-0"7'-4"

11'-4" 5'-10"

2'-8" 3'-8" 4'-3 1/2" 1'-4 1/2"

8'-4"

8'
-1

1"
1'

-0
"

1'-0"

13'-10 1/4"11'-11 3/4"5'-3 1/2"4'-4 1/2"12'-0"

6'
-1

"
5'

-1
0"

1'
-1

0"
4'

-7
"

3'-10 1/2" 5'-9 1/2"
3'-10 1/2"

9'
-1

"
4'

-2
"

3'
-0

"
1'

-7
"

5'-2 1/4" 2'-11" 4'-6 1/4"

4'-9 1/4"13'-6 3/4"5'-10"11'-4"

10
'-6

"
3'

-0
 1

/4
"

1'
-4

 1
/4

"
4'

-0
 1

/2
"

7'
-6

"
5'

-3
"

7'
-9

"

3'-1 1/2"

2'-5"1'-1"3'-6"

5'
-6

"
8'

-2
"

BYPASS

34"X48"
TILE WALLS

TO CLG
& FG BASE

SHELF

A

A

B

B

CC

47'-6"

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

TRTR
SH

EL
V

ES

GIRDERGIRDER

POST

POST

POST

POST

6'
-6

" S
ID

E
W

A
LL

6'
-6

" S
ID

E
W

A
LL

8:12
VAULT

8:12
VAULT

4'-5 5/8"
8'-1 18" CLG

HEIGHT

7' SIDE
WALL

16:12
SLOPE

SET @ 6'-0" AFF

20

21 22

DRWS

DRWS

LINEN

DRWS

M
A

KE
UP

D
ES

K

23

24

25

26

1'
-0

"

MELAMINE
SHELVES

TB

SUITE
BATH 4

DRWS

RAIN HEAD

SHOWER VALVES
CENTERED BELOW

HEADS

DIVERTER

TILE TO
CLG

SINK

TILE ALL
SHOWER
WALLS

UPPER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  8'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  6'-11 3 8" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING

WALLS
4. ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER

FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

RADON MITIGATION SYSTEM
1.

A3

UPPER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

48



FRONT ELEVATION

UPPER FLOOR PLATE

UPPER FLOOR

MAIN FLOOR PLATE

MAIN FLOOR

TOP OF FOUNDATION

TOP OF FTNG

10
'-1

 1
/8

"
8'

-1
 1

/8
"

8'
-7

 1
/8

"
6'

-1
1 

3/
8"

8'
-4

"

WINDOW

WINDOW

22
 3

/4
"

22
 1

/4
"

SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

7'
-0

"

WINDOW

TOP OF FLOOR

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

HOUSE #

MAIN
FLOOR

8'
-1

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

BL28532'
-0

"

6"
 T

RI
M

9 
5/

8"
HE

EL8
12

4'-5 5/8"

1'
-2

 1
/2

"
HE

EL

6'
-6

"

8 
5/

16
"

HE
EL

1'
-0

"

11
 5

/8
"

HE
EL

7'
-0

"

16
12

5'-4 13/16"

4'
-6

"

16
:1

2

2'-0"
2'-0"

SADDLE

8"
 FR

IEZ
E

8"
 FR

IEZ
E

10
12

12
12

16
12

16
12

10
12

10
12

11'-7"19'-7"

12" TRIM

8" FRIEZE8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE 8" FRIEZE

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

METAL ROOF

BILTFAB
TIE-ROD
SEE DTL

THIS PAGE

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

8"
X4

2"
 T

RI
M

3'-6" 3'-0" 3'-6"

4'-0"4'-0"

4'-0" 4'-0"

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

DRAIN
WRAP

DRAIN
WRAP

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-1

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

SADDLE

STAMPED
CONC.

1'-5"

1'
-3

"

9'
-3

"

7'
-7

"

WHOLE
HOUSE

GUTTERS

10
12

GUTTERSGUTTERS

GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

34
'-9

 9
/1

6"

SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

GRADE

9
12

4.25
12

1'-3"

1'-3"

FROM
STOOP

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

8" 
FR

IEZ
E 12

12

7
1210

12

10
12

12
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

12" TRIM 12" TRIM12" TRIM12" TRIM12" TRIM12" TRIM 14" TRIM14" TRIM14" TRIM

8" FRIEZE

8" TRIM

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE 8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

8" FRIEZE

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M6"

 T
RI

M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6'
-0

"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-1

"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-1

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-7

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-7

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-7

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

7:
12

1'-3"
1'-3"

1'-3"

6"
 T

RI
M

12" TRIM

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

CAP FOR
FUTURE FIXTURE

BY HOMEOWNER

5.5
12

10" TRIM

1'
-0

"

8" FRIEZE 10" TRIM10" TRIM

5.5
12

5.5
12

5.5
12

10
12

17'-0"

5.5
12

5.5
12

BIRDS MOUTH/
SADDLE @ RAKE/

GABLE

10" TRIM10" TRIM10" TRIM

14" TRIM 14" TRIM

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

8" FRIEZE

6"
 T

RI
M

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS
GUTTERS

GUTTERS
GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT
D

O
W

N
SP

O
UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

39
'-7

 9
/1

6"

5/4X12

5/4X10

C
O

N
FI

RM
 D

IM
 O

N
 F

RO
N

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

MAIN

20"

2'
-2

"

HEADER
PER PLAN

24X24
STONE

TOP

STONE

16" BLOCK

6x6 POST

5/4X8

6/D3

ALUM SOFFIT
& FASCIA

*SEE ELEVATION & SECTIONS
FOR ROOF PITCHES, ETC

14
"

24X24
STONE CAP

STONE BELOW

BAND @
TOP & BOTTOM

PANEL

BLOCKING
AS NEEDED

20
"

PORCH COLUMN #2
SCALE : 1/2" = 1'-0"

2"

14"

12"

16 1/2"

COLUMN WRAP
MATERIAL XLD OR

CEDAR - SEE FRONT EL.
& COLOR BOOK

SMOOTH OR
CEDAR - SEE
FRONT EL. &

COLOR BOOK

ELEVATION NOTES
FRONT:
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X6" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. SEE DETAIL 10/D4 FOR CORNERS U.N.O.
4. NOTE: FILL IN OPENINGS OVER ALL BRACKETS
5. SHIP FRONT DOOR W/ NO BRICK MOULD
6. BOARD & BATTEN @ 24" OC SPACING U.N.O.

SIDES AND REAR (PER NEIGHBORHOOD):
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X4" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

21 3/16"

36
"

2X8 BLOCKING
IN GABLE TRUSS

2X8 BLOCKING
BETWEEN
TRUSSES

GARAGE
PLATE

2'
-7

"
A

BO
V

E 
PL

A
TE

12
12

BILTFAB TIE-ROD
NOT STRUCTURAL

WALL LINE

A4

ELEVATIONS

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

JOB SETS

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

MASTER PLAN RELEASES

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
6 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\2
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 Su
tto

n 
- S

ch
w

ie
te

rs-
Elk

in
\2

 Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 Su

tto
n 

-
Sc

hw
ie

te
rs-

Elk
in

SC
HW

IET
ER

S-
EL

KI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
2 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T J

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

C
US

TO
M

 S
UT

TO
N

C
US

TO
M

 E
LE

VA
TIO

N

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLAN

12/20/23
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX

ZP
XX
XX
XX
XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

49



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Nicholas Ouellette through Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  February 29, 2024 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Garage Size in Excess of 1,500 Square Feet and 

Building Addition at 70 West Pleasant Lake Road 
 

Date Application Submitted   January 16, 2024 

Date Application Determined Complete: January 22, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   March 14, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    March 16, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Mark and Anita Udager have applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct a 
detached accessory garage structure on the west side of their property and a 306-square foot 
sunroom addition to the home. The detached accessory structure has a partially exposed lower 
floor constructed into a hill on the property. The proposed detached accessory garage is 
designed to accommodate the storage of a 22-foot boat and trailer. The total square footage of 
the proposed structure is 1,296 with 648 square feet on each floor. The existing garage on the 
site is 1,150 square feet, bringing the total garage space on the property to 2,302 square feet 
when 1,500 square feet is the maximum permitted by the code. The applicant’s narrative is 
attached, as well as the building elevations of the proposed structure. 

 

 

50



 

 

BACKGROUND 

The applicants previously applied for a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to exceed the 
maximum combined garage size of 1,500 
square feet on the property located at 70 West 
Pleasant Lake Road North. The CUP was 
approved March 9, 2023, but the improvements 
were not initiated. The current request is a new 
CUP to accommodate a larger garage size.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – Low 
Density (RSL). Private garages in this zoning district are not allowed to exceed 1,500 square 
feet without a CUP.  

The 1.41-acre property is located along the northwest edge of Pleasant Lake. A site survey is 
attached to this report. The property is located entirely in the Shoreland Management Area.  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Shoreland  

The property is separated from Pleasant Lake by a public trail and open space parcel. Pleasant 
Lake is categorized as a Recreational Development lake. All structures and septic systems must 
be a minimum of 75 feet from the ordinary high water level (OHWL) of the lake. Chapter 153 
(Shoreland Management Area) defines a structure as “anything which is built, constructed, or 
erected, whether temporary or permanent, in or above ground.”  

The plans show the sunroom addition to the existing home is 103 feet from the OHWL and the 
existing home is 102 feet. The plans comply with the minimum setback requirements. The 
proposed detached accessory garage is located on the opposite side of the home from the 
OHWL.  

A certificate of zoning compliance is required from the City Clerk prior to initiating any work in 
the shoreland management area. 

  

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

51



 

 

Setbacks  

The proposed detached accessory structure and sunroom addition exceed the 30-foot minimum 
setback requirements at all property lines and street easements. 

Height 

The detached accessory garage is 34 feet and 11.5 inches in height and unchanged from the 
previous CUP approval. The detached accessory garage does not exceed the height of the 
principal structure in compliance with the City Code. 

Size 

The garage is similar to the previously approved project except that the building dimensions 
have been expanded. Total Floor Area is defined as the area of all stories, as determined using 
exterior dimensions, including garages that are not part of the basement, clerestory area and 
cover porches and decks. The floor area provided on plans has not been updated to reflect the 
increase in building dimensions. The new detached garage size proposed by the applicant 
results in a total detached garage floor area of 1,296 square feet.  

Garage CUP 

A garage which exceeds 1,500 square feet may be permitted after securing a conditional use 
permit. The applicant is requesting approval for a 1,296 square foot detached garage. The 
garage addition will result in a combined garage square footage of 2,446 square feet. 

The following specific CUP criteria must be met: 

1. The garage shall not exceed 3,000 square feet; 
 
The plans comply. The garage addition will result in a combined garage square footage of 
2,446.  
 

2. The garage shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building or 
structure; 
 
The garage will have the same exterior materials and design elements as the principal 
building.  
 
 
 

52



 

 

3. The floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.12; 
 
The applicant has provided a FAR worksheet that shows a FAR of 11.76%. The FAR 
calculation must be submitted to the building official with the building permit to ensure 
compliance with the 12% FAR limit. 
 

4. No use of the garage shall be permitted other than for private residential noncommercial 
use;  

 
The garage will be used by the residents of the home for typical residential uses. The 
applicant’s narrative indicates that main level of the garage will primarily be used for storage 
of lawn and recreational equipment as well as boat and trailer storage.  

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
garage request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff has reviewed 
the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. The attached garage will have the 
same exterior materials and design elements as the main portion of the home. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The garage addition, which has been designed to blend in with the rest of the existing home, 
will not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
 
 
 

53



 

 

5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 
neighborhood; 
 
The described use of the structure will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns. The City engineer has reviewed 
the plans and has recommended conditions to ensure that impacts to drainage patterns are 
mitigated.  

9. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
10. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
The proposed use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 

 

11. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 
processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
  
 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Survey dated January 16, 2024 

Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative dated January 12, 2024 

Exhibit C: Building elevations and floor plans dated January 16, 2024 

 Exhibit D: FAR Calculation Spreadsheet dated January 12, 2024 

 Exhibit E: Engineer Review Memo dated February 5, 2024 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow construction of 1,296 square foot detached garage and 306 square foot sunroom addition at 70 
West Pleasant Lake Road, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The request to allow a total of  2,446 square feet of garage area is approved in accordance 

with the application submitted on December 15, 2023 and additional information received on 
January 3, 2024, except as amended by this approval. 
 

2. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before the issuance of a 
building permit. The building plan application shall contain an erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

3. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting construction 
disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the dripline.  

 
 

55



 

 

4. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  
a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed downstream of all proposed 

grading, in order to ensure proper containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be 
taken to maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation due to 
grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in the deposit of 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
5. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of construction.  

a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review 
by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement. 

 
6. All lighting on the accessory structure shall be downcast and shielded in accordance with Section 

151.031 of the City Code. 
 

7. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
8. A certificate of zoning compliance is required from the City Clerk prior to initiating any work 

in the shoreland management area. 
 
9. Applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district rules and 

regulations. 
 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  
In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has the 
following options:  
 
A) Recommend approval of the application with conditions, based on the applicant's 

submission, the contents of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the 
Planning Commission.  
 

• This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 
to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions.  
 

B) Recommend denial of the application with findings for denial clearly articulated. 
 

C) Recommend continuance of the application review based on the need for more 
information in which to process the request.  

56



57



58



WAYZATA, MN  55391
SUITE 102

FAX: 952.473.8222
Phone: 952.473.8777

275 EAST LAKE STREET

59

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT SHINGLES PER ELEV'S METAL ROOFS PER ELEV'S HARDIE SHAKE SIDING PER ELEV'S HARDIE BOARD & BATTEN SIDING PER ELEV'S 6" WNDW & DR TRIM BDS. PER ELEV'S 6" FRIEZE BDS. PER ELEV'S MIRATEC BANDING PER ELEV'S RAILINGS TO MATCH EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
12(MATCH)/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXIST. GAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759

AutoCAD SHX Text
12(MATCH)/12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W x 50"T x 30"D  BRACKETS TYP. DTL. 8/38/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12 PITCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/12 PITCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12 PITCH  (or MATCH EXIST.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12 PITCH  BELOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/12 PITCH  (or MATCH EXIST.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 3/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 3/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FASCIA HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/4 MIRATEC FASCIA BOARDS. ADJUST OR TRIM AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL FASCIA / DIM DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1 1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UISSUE DATE:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDRAWING DESCRIPTION:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREVIOUS ISSUE DATES:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT 2024, ALEXANDER DESIGN GROUP, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UDAGER RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST PLEASANT LAKE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH OAKS, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 JANUARY 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSORY GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATIONS & ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST GARAGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH GARAGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH GARGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST GARAGE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE ROOF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3



SLAB @ O.H. DOOR = 911.50 '

SLAB @ O.H. DOOR = 901.00 '

900.50 '

901.50 '

91
2.

00
'

91
0.

00
'

91
2.

00
'

91
0.

00
'

912.00 '
910.00 '

91
2.

00
'

91
0.

00
'

909.50 '

912.00 '911.17 '

WAYZATA, MN  55391
SUITE 102

FAX: 952.473.8222
Phone: 952.473.8777

275 EAST LAKE STREET

60

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE - ALL WINDOW & DR. HEAD  - ALL WINDOW & DR. HEAD HGTS. TO BE SET AT 8'-0" UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITION - 306` 306` UPPER GARAGE - 576` 576` LOWER GARAGE - 576`576`

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE FOOTAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARVIN INTEGRITY WND. CODES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE - SEE 'HANSON GROUP'  - SEE 'HANSON GROUP' STRUCTURAL PAGES FOR ALL ENGINEERING. THESE PAGES TO SUPERSEDE ANY CALLOUTS OR SIZING SHOWN THAT MAY DIFFER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE - OFFSET EXTERIOR STUDS  - OFFSET EXTERIOR STUDS 1-1/2" TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF FOUNDATION WHERE EXT. FND. INSUL. IS APPLIED, EXCEPT WHERE NOTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0" X 8'-0" OVERHEAD DOOR WITH SIDE MOUNT OPENER

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELCAP3759-3W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 X8 0X8 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-9 1/2" LVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-14" LVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-2x10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.T. PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.T. PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-10 1/2" CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 9'-10 1/2" CLG UPPER GARAGE 23'-0" X 23'-0" EPOXY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 9'-0" CLG LOWER GARAGE 22'-1" X 22'-6" CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-0" X 8'-0" OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 x8 0x8 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. PLANK PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-18" LVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL LINTEL @ PLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-9 1/2" LVL @ FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME WALL DOWN TO CONC. BEAM POCKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALLS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALLS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTINGS TO FROST

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEP FOOTINGS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEP FOOTINGS AS REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" SLAB LEDGE PER CONTRACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD - TO DAYLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUGH-IN FUTURE UNIT HEATER.  TO RUN OFF BOILER SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF TRUSSES - PER SUPPLIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. PLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" INSULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SLAB - SLOPED TO DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. PLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" INSULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SLAB - SLOPED TO DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXISTING GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 MATCH EXIST. GAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE SLAB = 911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE SLAB = 901.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATE HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG. HGT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF CONSTRUCTION: : ROOF VENTS AS REQ'D. - 1/300. ASPHALT SHINGLES METAL ROOF - PER MANUF. INSTALL REQUIREMENTS.  - PER MANUF. INSTALL REQUIREMENTS. PER MANUF. INSTALL REQUIREMENTS. FELT PAPER w/ ICE & WATER SHIELD. FULL ICE & WATER @ ROOFS UNDER 4:12 5/8" OSB ROOF SHEATHING.  ROOF SHEATHING. WOOD TRUSSES @ 24" O.C. - ENGINEERED BY SUPPLIER. BAFFLE @ EACH TRUSS SPACE. R-49 BLOWN-IN INSULATION. POLY VAPOR BARRIER - 6 MIL. 5/8" GYP. BD. CEILING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOFFIT/FASCIA CONSTRUCTION: : MATCH EXISTING SOFFIT AND FASCIA GUTTERS - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL CONSTRUCTION: : SIDING PER ELEVATIONS. 2 LAYERS GRADE "D" BUILDING PAPER. 1/2" PLYWOODD SHEATHING. 2x6 STUDS @ 16" O.C. 1" SPRAY "U" FOAM INSUL & SEALER W/ FIBER GLASS BATTS. CONTINUOUS POLY VAPOR BARRIER - 6 MIL. - SEAL ALL SEAMS & PENETRATIONS 1/2" GYP. BD. - TAPED, SANDED, PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR CONSTRUCTION: : FINISHED FLOOR. 3/4" T. & G. PLYWOOD SUBFLOOR. FLOOR TRUSSES (PER PLAN) @ 16" O.C. UNLESS 16" O.C. UNLESS  O.C. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. SPRAYED U-FOAM INSUL. @ RIM R-21. R-49 BLOWN-IN INSULATION. POLY VAPOR BARRIER - 6 MIL. 5/8" PLYWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION: : CONC. PIERS OR HELICAL PILES - PER ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALL = = DEMO WALL = = PROPOSED NEW ==

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UISSUE DATE:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDRAWING DESCRIPTION:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREVIOUS ISSUE DATES:%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT 2024, ALEXANDER DESIGN GROUP, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UDAGER RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST PLEASANT LAKE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH OAKS, MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 JANUARY 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSORY GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR PLANS & SECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADG

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER GARAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER GARAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4



61



February 5, 2024

Kendra Lindahl, AICP
City Planner

Via E-mail: KLindahl@landform.net

RE: 70 West Pleasant Lake Road
Sambatek Project No. 51986

Dear Kendra: 

I have reviewed the proposed garage and other proposed improvements for this parcel and am 
recommending that the applicant provide us with an erosion control plan in conformance with 
the Best Practices Manual to control erosion in all disturbed areas.  

In addition, the driveway installation shall be coordinated with the City Engineer and NOHOA.  

Sincerely,
Sambatek, LLC

Michael J. Nielson, PE
Township Engineer

CC: Kevin Kress, Administrator

62

mailto:KLindahl@landform.net


 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  February 29, 2024 
 
RE: Septic Variance at 4 Dove Lane 

 

Date Application Submitted   November 13, 2023 

Date Application Determined Complete: February 5, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   March 14, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    April 5, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

James Christiansen has requested approval of a subsurface sewage treatment system (SSTS) 
variance to allow a zero-foot setback from the road easement where a minimum of 30 feet is 
required. The variance would allow a replacement of the SSTS at 4 Dove Lane, which is 
classified as non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500, Subp.4(B).  

  

63



 

 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently developed with a single 
family home and a small shed. The property is 
located in the shoreland district for Gilfillan 
Lake.  

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density 
residential and is zoned Residential Single 
Family – Low Density (RSL). The 0.57-acre 
property is located at the southeast corner of 
Dove Lane and Edgewater Lane.  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Chapter 51 of the City Code establishes standards for SSTS. Section 51.03(3) requires a 
minimum setback of 30 feet from all property lines, wetlands and the nearest edge of any 
roadway easement. The applicant’s plan shows a zero foot setback from both Dove lane and 
Edgewater Lane.  

Variance Standards 

Section 51.02(11) of the Code says “Where 
conditions prevent the construction, alteration, 
and/or repair of a sewage treatment system in 
strict compliance with the requirements of this 
chapter, the property owner may apply for a 
variance following the procedures outlined in 
North Oaks City Code Sections 151.078 & 
151.079.” 

Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code requires 
that the following criteria be considered and a 
variance only be granted when it is demonstrated 
that following standards have all been me: 

(1)(a) Their strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances 
unique to the individual land under consideration, and the variances shall be granted only 

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

Figure 2-Site Plan 

64



 

 

when it is demonstrated that the actions will be in keeping with the spirit and intent of this 
chapter.  
 
The size and shape of the existing lot of record does not have another location for a new 
septic on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The location of water supply lines, 
structures, and the existing cesspools leave only this location for a new septic system.  
 
b) PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES means the land in question cannot be put to a reasonable 
use if used under conditions allowed by the official controls, the plight of the land owner is 
due to circumstances unique to the land in question which were not created by the land 
owner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 
The size and shape of the existing lot of record does not have another location for a new 
septic on this site and creates a practical difficulty. The location of water supply lines, 
structures, the existing cesspools leave only this location for a new septic system. Approving 
the variance will construction of a new septic system and abandonment of the non-compliant 
system. It would not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 
(c) Economic considerations alone shall not constitute an undue hardship if reasonable use 
for the land exists under the terms of this chapter.  
 
The variance requested is to replace a failing system. The variance is not based on 
economic considerations alone. 
 
(d) A variance may not be granted for any use that is not permitted under this chapter for 
land in the zone where the affected person’s land is located.  
 
The variance would allow a new septic system. It would not allow a use that is not permitted 
by City Code. 
 
(2) Subject to the above, a variance may be granted only in the event that all of the following 
circumstances exist:  
 
(a) Unique circumstances apply to the which do not generally apply to other land in the 
same zone or vicinity, and result from lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances 
over which the owners of the land have no control;  
 
The circumstances of this site do not apply to other properties in same zone and are the 
result of the small lot size, topography and existing conditions on this lot.  
 

65



 

 

(b) The proposed uses is reasonable;  
 
The proposed use is reasonable. It will allow replacement of the failing system with a new  
septic system.  
 
(c) That the unique circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 
The circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant. The existing septic system 
has failed and must be replaced. 
 
(d) That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this chapter to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district;  
 
Granting the variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege. It will simply 
allow them to replace their failing system.  
 
(e) That the Variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 
difficulties;  
 
The variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical difficulties on site. 
 
 (f) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood; and  
 
The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, 
or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within 
the neighborhood. 
 
(g) At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 
ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce 
or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  
 
At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common ownership with 
contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce or avoid the 
nonconformity of the land.  
 

66



 

 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Location Map 

Exhibit b: Site Survey dated February 5, 2024 

Exhibit C: KSD SSTS Design dated November 1, 2023 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff finds that the variance standards are met and that the new 
system will result in improvement to the local ground and surface waters by eliminating a non-compliant 
cesspool. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  

In consideration of the variance application, the Planning Commission has the following options:  

A) Recommend approval of the application with conditions, based on the applicant's 
submission, the contents of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the 
Planning Commission.  
 

• This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 
to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions.  
 

B) Recommend denial of the application with findings for denial clearly articulated. 
 

C) Recommend continuance of the application review based on the need for more 
information in which to process the request.  

 
 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 
DATE:  February 29, 2024 
 
RE: Public Hearing. Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding 

Garage Definitions And  Garage Size Standards 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A working group made up of Chair Cremons, Council member Azman and staff is meeting monthly to 
address a number of zoning ordinance sections that have been identified by staff, the Planning 
Commission and City Council as in need of review and potential amendment. Staff will bring individual 
items to the Planning Commission on a regular basis to present amendments for consideration. This 
month we are bringing garage size back for discussion.  
 
The Planning Commission reviewed this item at the September 28th meeting, the October 26th meeting 
and the November 30th meeting. The draft ordinance was developed by the working group based on 
Planning Commission feedback. 
 
ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City requires a conditional use permit for garages exceeding 1,500 sq. ft. 
 
City Code Section 151.005 defines a garage as “An accessory building or accessory portion of the main 
building which shall not exceed 1,500 square feet.”  
 
Since 2015, the City has received 15 applications for a conditional use permit to exceed this limit.  Only 
one of those applications has been denied. If the City is comfortable with larger garages (as the history 
suggests), it is time to consider modifying the standards to reflect the current market and the City’s 
comfort with larger garages. 
 
It is important to ensure that garages are in scale with the home to avoid the appearance of a garage 
with an attached house. There are a number of tools available to manage garage size including limits to 
the square footage or front elevation.  
 

  

129



 

 

Definitions 
  
The current City Code definitions should not include performance standards. Staff recommends the 
following changes with underlined text for the proposed additions to the City Code and struck through 
text for the deletions: 
 

ACCESSORY BUILDING, STRUCTURE, OR USE. A subordinate building, structure, or use 
which is located on the same lot on which the main building or principal use is situated and which 
is reasonably necessary and incidental to the conduct of the primary use of the main building or 
principal use. 

CARPORT. An area serving the same purpose as a garage as defined herein, but not entirely 
enclosed with walls.  

GARAGE, PRIVATE. An accessory building (attached or detached) or accessory portion of the 
main building. 

PRINCIPAL BUILDING OR USE. The main use of land or buildings as distinguished from 
subordinate or accessory uses. A PRINCIPAL USE may be either permitted or conditional. 

 
Garage Size Discussion 

 
The following language is recommended by the working group for approval. The draft language shows 
underlined text for the proposed additions to the City Code and struck through text for the deletions. 
 
Section 151.050(C) of the City Code (permitted accessory uses): 

 
(C) Permitted accessory uses. The following accessory uses shall be permitted:  

(1) Attached or detached private garage and private carport facilities, provided the buildings are 
constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building or structure and provided 
that the combined facilities shall not exceed 2,000 square feet;  

(2) Private tennis courts and swimming pools, which are maintained for the enjoyment and 
convenience of the resident of the principal use and their guests;  

(3) Buildings and uses accessory to the principal use, small tool houses, sheds for storage of 
domestic supplies, and noncommercial recreation equipment, provided the buildings are 
constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building or structure, but 
accessory dwelling units shall not be permitted;  

(4) Noncommercial greenhouses; and  
(5) Signs showing residents’ name and/or address identification not to exceed 2 square feet 

and 1 real estate sale sign not to exceed 8 square feet. 
 
Section 151.050 (D)9 of the City Code (conditional uses) would be revised as follows: 

 

130



 

 

(9) Garage which exceeds 2,000 square feet, provided that:  
(a) The garage shall not exceed 3,000 square feet;  
(b) The garage shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building or 

structure;  
(c) The square footage of floor area of the garage will be included in the calculation of the floor 

area ratio for the property. The floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.12 or the maximum floor 
area ratio permitted by the subdivision approval;  

(d) No use of the garage shall be permitted other than for private residential noncommercial 
use; and  

(e) The factors set forth in § 151.076(C) shall be considered. 
 

 

Attached for reference: 

Exhibit A: Draft Ordinance amending Chapter 151 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 
 
The Planning Commission has the following options: 
 
1. Move to recommend approval of the ordinance amendment as drafted. 

 
2. Move to recommend approval of the ordinance amendment with modifications.  

 
3. Move to recommend denial of the amendment with findings for denial.  

 
4. Recommend continuance of the application based on the need for more information.  
 
 

131



 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, REGARDING 
BUILDING HEIGHT 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One.  Title XV, Chapter 151 Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.050(D)(7) of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended as follows. The underlined text 
shows the proposed additions to the City Code and the struck through text shows the deletions: 

(7) Buildings with a height greater than 35 feet, provided that:  
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. Chimneys, weather 

vanes and the like shall not be counted as an element of building height;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development or grading are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 
or walkout level. “Naturally suited” shall be defined as applying to lots that meet at 
least the following criteria:; 

i. A lot shall meet all current stormwater regulations; 
ii.  A house should have a 3-foot minimum elevation difference from the basement 

finished floor elevation to the groundwater elevation, as determined by a 
geotechnical engineer by a soils investigation;  

iii. A natural slope in the topography exists prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements that organically accommodates a home design with an egress or 
walkout level and no artificial topographical grade change in excess of 6 feet in 
total is required or created; and  

i.iv. Any other factors exist that demonstrate the proposed building is compatible with 
the natural condition of the land prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements;  

(c)(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the 
roof structure will be considered a full story;  

(d)(e) Any time any portion of a building exceeds 35 feet in height and that portion is within 
50 feet of an adjacent side or rear  lot line, the setback requirement applicable to that 
portion of the building relative to that lot line shall be increased by 2 feet for each foot 
in height (or portion thereof) above 35 feet. For example, if a portion of a planned 
building is 44 feet in height and that portion is less than 50 feet from a side or rear lot 
line, the typical 30 foot setback requirement for that portion of the building would be 
increased by 18 feet to a minimum 48 foot setbackAny time the side or rear elevations 
of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building 

132



 

 

line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in 
height above 35 feet; and  

(e)(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

Section Two.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 
adoption and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed in regular session of the City Council on the ____day of _______________, 2024. 

 

      CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 
City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

(Published in the Shoreview Press on February 13, 2024) 

133



Ash St

Highway 96

H
od

gs
on

 R
d

C
en

te
rv

ill
e 

R
d

Turtle Lake Rd

H
odgson Rd

I-
35

E

Sherwood Rd

Pleasant Lake

Gilfillan Lake

Deep Lake

Wilkinson Lake

Charley Lake

Black Lake

Teal
Pond

North
Mallard

Pond

South
Mallard

Pond

BOBO
LIN

K
L

N

SHADOW LN

SOUTH LONG LAKE T R

B
L U

EBIRD
LN

ISLA

N
D

RD

W
EST PLEASANT LAKE RD

WH ITE OAKS

LN

TH
RU

SH
 L

N

BASSWOOD LN

LO

ST
RO

C
K

L
N

EASTVIEW  LN

LO
N

G

VI EW LN

H
AY

C
A

M
P

R
D

B
L

U
E

C

R A NE LN

N
O

R
D

C
IR

C
L

E
R

D

R
E

D
M

APLE LN

A
SPEN

LN

N
O

RD

CIR
CLE

RD

NORD  CIRCLE  RD

NORTH DEEP LA KE RD

C
H

IC
K

A
D

E E
L

N

S
O

U
T

H
D

EEP
LAKE RD

WISHBONE
LN

CHARL EY
LAKE CT

L
A

K
E

C
T

L
A

K
E

B
A

Y

WEST LAKE DR

PE
T

ER
SO

N
   

PL

W
ILDFLO W ER WAY

ANEMONE

CIR

L
O

NG
M AR SH LN

CHARLES   LAKE   RD

HACKBER
RY

LN

C
R

EE
K

SID
E  LN

W
IL

DFLOWER

P L B
L

A
CK

OAK RD

GOLDFINCHLN

IR
O

N

W
OOD LN

ISL AN D
VIE

W
LN

CROCUS  LN

RE
D

  F
O

X
  R

D

R E D FOX RD

PARTRIDGE
LN

S AN

D
P

IP
E

R
LN

SN
O

W
Y O W

L
LN

NUTHATCH LN

CATBIRD CIR

HTS

R
E

D
F

O
R

E
S

T
L

N

N
O

R
T

H
O

A
K

S
R

D

H AW
K

L
N B

L
U

E
FL

A
G

C
T

FALCON LN

C
A

T
B

IR
D

LN

N
O

RT
H

O
A

K
S

R
D

W
O

O
DHILL LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

K
  B

L
V

D

PHOEBE  LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

N

E
A

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
LA

K
E

R
D

BENT TREE
LN

O
R

IO
L

E
LN

PHEASANT LN

EAST OAKS RD

DEER
HILLS
CT

D
E

ER

HILLS DRIVE

WHIT E P IN

E
RD

P
IN

E
 C

O
N

E
 R

D

M
ARSH

 RDG

LARCH LN

K

N
O L L

R
D

PIN
E

RD

PEARSON
PL

O
T

T
E

R
  LN

C
H

IP
M

U
N

K
 L

N

BA
D

G
ER

   
LN

SKI   
LN

SKILLM
AN

LN

B

UFFALO

R
D

DOVE LN

ROBB FARM RD

HERO
N

L
N

W
E

S
T

S
H

O
R

E
R

D

TH

O
M

P
SO

N
LN

BIR
CH

LN

Q U A

IL
L

N

SWALLOW LN

SUMMIT
HEIGHTS

SUMMIT
VIEW

SUMMIT LANE

SUMMIT
COURT

SUMMIT
CROSING

SUMMIT RIDGE DR

M

ALLARD LN

ROBB  F
ARM  R

D

BLUE G OOSE RD

L
ILY

P
O

N
D

R

D

W
R

EN
L

N

EAST GILFILLAN  RD

D
U

CK
PA

SS
R

D

TEAL
ISLAND RD

SQUIRREL LN

D
U

C
K

PA
S

S

RD

M
O

N
A

RC
H

 W
A

Y

CRESCENT LN

LE A F WING D R

RID GE

RD

MARTIN LN

RID
G

E
RD

MEADO W

LN

WILLOW RD

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
L

N

L
A

RKS P U R LN

L
A

R
K

SP
U

R
L

N

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

  L
A

K
E

  R
D

 

R
A

V
EN

R
D

S
U

N

SHINE
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

OVERHILL DR

EAST
PLEASANT

LA
K

E
R

D

DOG

W
O

O
D

L
N

W
O

O
D

D
U

C
K

LN

E
A

G
L

E
R

I D
G

E
R

D

D
E

E
R

L
N

N
O

R
T

H
  O

A
K

S
  R

D

S
U

N
SE

T
LN

BUFFALO RD

R
A

C
C

O

ON RD

SPARROW
LN

P
H

E
A

SA
N

T
LN

G
A

DW
A

LL
LN

C
A

RD
IN

A
L

LN

EA
ST

O
A

K
S

R
D

P O

PLA
R L N

TH
O

M
P

SO
N

L
N

B
LU

E
JAY

LN

BLUE SPRUCE
CT

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
R

D

C
O

LU
M

B
IN

E
L

N

EVERG
REEN CT

HILL 
FARM 
CT

HILL FARM CIR

HILL  FARM   CIR

WEST PLEASANT LAKE
RD

SPR
I NG MARSH

LN

RED PINE RD

RE
D

 P
IN

E 
 L

N

LAWTON LN

CAPAUL

W
OODS CT

BRA
IN

A
R

D
W

A
Y

F
O

S
T

E
R

PL

VILLAGE

C
EN

T
E

R
D

R

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

LN

B
U

C
H

A
L

HEIGH
TS

O
SP

R
E

Y
C

T

C
AT

B
I R

D
L

N

EAST
PLEASAN

T
LA

K
E

R
D

W
E

S
T

P
L

EA
SA

NT
LAKE

R
D

P
R

E
SE

R
V

E
TR

BLUE JAY
LN

BLU E J A Y
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

W
E

ST
P

L
E

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

H
IL

L
FA

R
M

C
IR

R
E

D
B

A
R

N
R

D

EVERG REEN
RD

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

  L
N

EAST  OAKS  RD

EA
ST

PLEASA

NT
LA

K
E

RD

HUMMINGBIRD
HILL

RO
BIN LN

THO MPSO N
L

N

NORTH
M ALL ARD RD

N
O

R T
H

M
A

L
L

A
R

D
R

D

P
IN

E
R

D

HAWTHORNE CT

EAST
PLE

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
  LN

DEER
HILLS
CIR

EAST O
AKS RD

DOVE LN

M
A

L
LA

R
D

RD

MINK LN

NORTH
MALLARD

CT

SKILLMAN
LN

SPRING FARM LN

SPRING FARM LN

EAST O R IO
LE

LN

BENT
TREE
CT

BLACK
LAKE
CT

BLAC
K

LAKE RD

RED
FOREST

W
AY

RED FOREST WAY

NORTH OAKS
RD

S
O

U
T

H
D

EE P
L AKE RD

EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

W
EST

PLEASANT LAKE RD

SU

M AC
LN

ISLA
N

D
R

D

ISLA
N

D
RD

SO

UTH
LO

N
G

LA
K

E
T

R

SOUTH LONG LAKE TR

PRESERVE
TR

B
LA

C
K

OA
K

RD

BLACK OAK RD

LO
N

G
M

A
R

SH
LN

P
ET

ER
SO

N
P

L

SCOTCH PI NE RD

S
C

O
T

C
H

P
IN

E
R

D

SCOTCH
PINE

LN

SCOTCH
PINE

CT

SCOTCH
PINE

CIR

DO
N

BUSH RD

SOUTHPOINTECT
RAVEN RD

MEADOWLARK
LN

W ILLOW RD

W
E

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
L

A
K

E
R

D EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

H
IG

H

CIRCLE

W
AY

WEST BAY LN

EAGL E

R
ID

G
E

R
D

E
A

G
LE

R
ID

G
E

R
D

SUNSET
LN

MAYCOMB LN

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

D

RA
D

LE
Y 

PL ALCO
TT CT

C
A

L
P

U
R

N
IA

 C
T

M
O

C
K

IN
G

B
IR

D
  C

T

TREE FARM LN

CRESCENT LN

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
C

T

RA
P

P
FARM

B
LV

D

M
O

N
A

R CH WAYM
O

N
A

R
C

H
L

N

RAPP FARM
L

N

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M

P LACE

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M
BLVD

SKI H ILL

RCM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RCM-PUD

RMM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RMM

RSL

RSL-PUD

Fut
ure

Red

For
est

RMH-PUD

RSM-PUD

R

RSL

RSL

RSM

R

R

RSL

RSL

R

RSM

R
RMM-PUDRSM

RMM

RSM

R

C

C/S

City of North Oaks Comprehensive Plan

MAP 8
Existing Zoning

Districts Map

OS (Open Space)

RSL (Residential Single Family - Low Density)

RSL-PUD (Residential Single Family - PUD)

RSM (Residential Single Family - Medium Density)

RMM (Residential Multiple Family Medium Density)

RMM-PUD (Residential Multiple Family Medium
Density - PUD)

RMH-PUD (Residential Multiple Family High
Density - PUD)

RCM-PUD (Residential-Commercial Mixed-PUD)

C (Commercial)

C/S (Commercial/Service)

LI (Limited Industrial)

R (Recreation)

HP (Historic Preservation)

Shoreland District Boundaries

Source: City Zoning Map
as of 5 - 10 - 21

North Oaks
Boundary

¦

RSM-PUD (Res. Single Fam. - Med. Density - PUD)

134



PLANNING REPORT 

TO: North Oaks Planning Commission 

FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

DATE: February 29, 2024 

RE: Public Hearing. Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding 
Building Height and Setback Standards In The RSL- Residential Single-
Family Low Density District 

BACKGROUND 

A working group made up of Chair Cremons, Council member Azman and staff is meeting monthly to 
address a number of provisions in the City’s existing zoning ordinance that have been identified by staff, 
the Planning Commission and City Council as areas where revisions to the existing language may be 
beneficial. Staff will bring individual items to the Planning Commission on a regular basis to present 
amendments for consideration. This item relates to building height, setbacks and topographical 
conditions. 

The City has been challenged on the existing language related to these items and how to interpret the 
existing code language. One of the areas the working group has been reviewing is the current 
requirement for houses with a height greater than 35 feet to obtain a conditional use permit (CUP). Staff 
believes that this is something that could be moved into development standards rather than requiring a 
conditional use permit. If the application meets the standards, staff would approve the building permit. 
However, the Planning Commission directed staff to keep the CUP requirement but modify the 
standards to raise the threshold for a CUP. 

Deb Breen gathered the CUPs for building height and found 59 CUPs for building height were submitted 
since 2000. Many of these CUPs were tied to new developments where streets and grading were done 
prior to home construction. In 2006, an application from 8 Mink Lane was submitted and denied. The 
application was then revised, resubmitted and approved. Also, it appears that some blanket approvals 
for greater permitted building heights (45-47 feet) were granted for Rapp Farm and Red Forest Way as 
part of the East Oaks PDA, eliminating the need for a CUP for houses over 35 feet in height in those 
developments.  

The Planning Commission discussed this issue at length at the October 26th meeting and at the 
November 30th meeting. This language was developed by the working group based on those 
discussions. 

135



 

 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 
 
Section 151.050 (D)(7) of the City Code requires a conditional use permit for buildings with a height 
greater than 35 feet and establishes the following standards: 
 
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are naturally 

suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level;  
(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof structure will 

be considered a full story; 
(e) Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of adjacent 

lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each 
foot in height above 35 feet; and  

(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 
There has been debate about both items c and e in the standards.  
 
The Commission noted that item (c) was adopted based on the historic North Oaks vision that homes be 
designed to be part of the land rather than grading a lot to fit a desired home. Staff researched other 
cities to review how they deal with this issue and found that most cities have general language similar to 
North Oaks, but the working group did recommend including some language from the City of Gem Lake. 
 
The issue of setbacks has become a source of concern in recent years. Administrator Kress noted that 
when he speaks with landowners with home taller than 35 feet, most simply design the home to meet 
the 50-foot setback regardless of which portion of the home exceeds 35 feet. However, in 2022 a 
landowner challenged the City ordinance interpretation that when any portion of the home exceeds 35 
feet, the home must comply with the 50-foot setback on the side and rear.  The working group felt that 
the more liberal interpretation was reasonable and directed staff to prepare language that would clarify 
the intent to only require the larger setback for those portions of the structure that exceed 35 feet in 
height.  
 
The working group recommended that the language be modified as follows: 
 

(7) Buildings with a height greater than 35 feet, provided that:  
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. Chimneys, weather 

vanes and the like shall not be counted as an element of building height;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development or 

grading are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level. 
“Naturally suited” shall be defined as applying to lots that meet at least the following criteria: 

i. A lot shall meet all current stormwater regulations; 

136



 

 

ii.  A house should have a 3-foot minimum elevation difference from the 
basement finished floor elevation to the groundwater elevation, as 
determined by a geotechnical engineer by a soils investigation;  

iii. A natural slope in the topography exists prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements that organically accommodates a home design with an egress 
or walkout level and no artificial topographical grade change in excess of 6 
feet in total is required or created; and  

iv. Any other factors exist that demonstrate the proposed building is compatible 
with the natural condition of the land prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements;  

(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

(e) Any time any portion of a building exceeds 35 feet in height and that portion is within 50 feet 
of an adjacent side or rear  lot line, the setback requirement applicable to that portion of the 
building relative to that lot line shall be increased by 2 feet for each foot in height (or portion 
thereof) above 35 feet. For example, if a portion of a planned building is 44 feet in height and 
that portion is less than 50 feet from a side or rear lot line, the typical 30 foot setback 
requirement for that portion of the building would be increased by 18 feet to a minimum 48 
foot setback; and  

(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

 
Attached for reference: 

 

Exhibit A: Draft Ordinance amending Chapter 151 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

Exhibit C: Setback Exhibits 

 
  

137



PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

The Planning Commission has the following options: 

1. Move to recommend approval of the ordinance amendment as drafted.

2. Move to recommend approval of the ordinance amendment with modifications.

3. Move to recommend denial of the ordinance amendment with findings for denial.

4. Recommend continuance of consideration of the ordinance amendment based on 
the need for more information.

138



 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, REGARDING 
BUILDING HEIGHT 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One.  Title XV, Chapter 151 Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.050(D)(7) of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended as follows. The underlined text 
shows the proposed additions to the City Code and the struck through text shows the deletions: 

(7) Buildings with a height greater than 35 feet, provided that:  
(a) The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point;  
(b) The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. Chimneys, weather 

vanes and the like shall not be counted as an element of building height;  
(c) The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development or grading are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 
or walkout level. “Naturally suited” shall be defined as applying to lots that meet at 
least the following criteria:; 

i. A lot shall meet all current stormwater regulations; 
ii.  A house should have a 3-foot minimum elevation difference from the basement 

finished floor elevation to the groundwater elevation, as determined by a 
geotechnical engineer by a soils investigation;  

iii. A natural slope in the topography exists prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements that organically accommodates a home design with an egress or 
walkout level and no artificial topographical grade change in excess of 6 feet in 
total is required or created; and  

i.iv. Any other factors exist that demonstrate the proposed building is compatible with 
the natural condition of the land prior to any construction, grading or 
improvements;  

(c)(d) Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the 
roof structure will be considered a full story;  

(d)(e) Any time any portion of a building exceeds 35 feet in height and that portion is within 
50 feet of an adjacent side or rear  lot line, the setback requirement applicable to that 
portion of the building relative to that lot line shall be increased by 2 feet for each foot 
in height (or portion thereof) above 35 feet. For example, if a portion of a planned 
building is 44 feet in height and that portion is less than 50 feet from a side or rear lot 
line, the typical 30 foot setback requirement for that portion of the building would be 
increased by 18 feet to a minimum 48 foot setbackAny time the side or rear elevations 
of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building 

139



 

 

line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in 
height above 35 feet; and  

(e)(f) Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

Section Two.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 
adoption and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed in regular session of the City Council on the ____day of _______________, 2024. 

 

      CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 
City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

(Published in the Shoreview Press on February 13, 2024) 

140



Ash St

Highway 96

H
od

gs
on

 R
d

C
en

te
rv

ill
e 

R
d

Turtle Lake Rd

H
odgson Rd

I-
35

E

Sherwood Rd

Pleasant Lake

Gilfillan Lake

Deep Lake

Wilkinson Lake

Charley Lake

Black Lake

Teal
Pond

North
Mallard

Pond

South
Mallard

Pond

BOBO
LIN

K
L

N

SHADOW LN

SOUTH LONG LAKE T R

B
L U

EBIRD
LN

ISLA

N
D

RD

W
EST PLEASANT LAKE RD

WH ITE OAKS

LN

TH
RU

SH
 L

N

BASSWOOD LN

LO

ST
RO

C
K

L
N

EASTVIEW  LN

LO
N

G

VI EW LN

H
AY

C
A

M
P

R
D

B
L

U
E

C

R A NE LN

N
O

R
D

C
IR

C
L

E
R

D

R
E

D
M

APLE LN

A
SPEN

LN

N
O

RD

CIR
CLE

RD

NORD  CIRCLE  RD

NORTH DEEP LA KE RD

C
H

IC
K

A
D

E E
L

N

S
O

U
T

H
D

EEP
LAKE RD

WISHBONE
LN

CHARL EY
LAKE CT

L
A

K
E

C
T

L
A

K
E

B
A

Y

WEST LAKE DR

PE
T

ER
SO

N
   

PL

W
ILDFLO W ER WAY

ANEMONE

CIR

L
O

NG
M AR SH LN

CHARLES   LAKE   RD

HACKBER
RY

LN

C
R

EE
K

SID
E  LN

W
IL

DFLOWER

P L B
L

A
CK

OAK RD

GOLDFINCHLN

IR
O

N

W
OOD LN

ISL AN D
VIE

W
LN

CROCUS  LN

RE
D

  F
O

X
  R

D

R E D FOX RD

PARTRIDGE
LN

S AN

D
P

IP
E

R
LN

SN
O

W
Y O W

L
LN

NUTHATCH LN

CATBIRD CIR

HTS

R
E

D
F

O
R

E
S

T
L

N

N
O

R
T

H
O

A
K

S
R

D

H AW
K

L
N B

L
U

E
FL

A
G

C
T

FALCON LN

C
A

T
B

IR
D

LN

N
O

RT
H

O
A

K
S

R
D

W
O

O
DHILL LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

K
  B

L
V

D

PHOEBE  LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

N

E
A

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
LA

K
E

R
D

BENT TREE
LN

O
R

IO
L

E
LN

PHEASANT LN

EAST OAKS RD

DEER
HILLS
CT

D
E

ER

HILLS DRIVE

WHIT E P IN

E
RD

P
IN

E
 C

O
N

E
 R

D

M
ARSH

 RDG

LARCH LN

K

N
O L L

R
D

PIN
E

RD

PEARSON
PL

O
T

T
E

R
  LN

C
H

IP
M

U
N

K
 L

N

BA
D

G
ER

   
LN

SKI   
LN

SKILLM
AN

LN

B

UFFALO

R
D

DOVE LN

ROBB FARM RD

HERO
N

L
N

W
E

S
T

S
H

O
R

E
R

D

TH

O
M

P
SO

N
LN

BIR
CH

LN

Q U A

IL
L

N

SWALLOW LN

SUMMIT
HEIGHTS

SUMMIT
VIEW

SUMMIT LANE

SUMMIT
COURT

SUMMIT
CROSING

SUMMIT RIDGE DR

M

ALLARD LN

ROBB  F
ARM  R

D

BLUE G OOSE RD

L
ILY

P
O

N
D

R

D

W
R

EN
L

N

EAST GILFILLAN  RD

D
U

CK
PA

SS
R

D

TEAL
ISLAND RD

SQUIRREL LN

D
U

C
K

PA
S

S

RD

M
O

N
A

RC
H

 W
A

Y

CRESCENT LN

LE A F WING D R

RID GE

RD

MARTIN LN

RID
G

E
RD

MEADO W

LN

WILLOW RD

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
L

N

L
A

RKS P U R LN

L
A

R
K

SP
U

R
L

N

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

  L
A

K
E

  R
D

 

R
A

V
EN

R
D

S
U

N

SHINE
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

OVERHILL DR

EAST
PLEASANT

LA
K

E
R

D

DOG

W
O

O
D

L
N

W
O

O
D

D
U

C
K

LN

E
A

G
L

E
R

I D
G

E
R

D

D
E

E
R

L
N

N
O

R
T

H
  O

A
K

S
  R

D

S
U

N
SE

T
LN

BUFFALO RD

R
A

C
C

O

ON RD

SPARROW
LN

P
H

E
A

SA
N

T
LN

G
A

DW
A

LL
LN

C
A

RD
IN

A
L

LN

EA
ST

O
A

K
S

R
D

P O

PLA
R L N

TH
O

M
P

SO
N

L
N

B
LU

E
JAY

LN

BLUE SPRUCE
CT

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
R

D

C
O

LU
M

B
IN

E
L

N

EVERG
REEN CT

HILL 
FARM 
CT

HILL FARM CIR

HILL  FARM   CIR

WEST PLEASANT LAKE
RD

SPR
I NG MARSH

LN

RED PINE RD

RE
D

 P
IN

E 
 L

N

LAWTON LN

CAPAUL

W
OODS CT

BRA
IN

A
R

D
W

A
Y

F
O

S
T

E
R

PL

VILLAGE

C
EN

T
E

R
D

R

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

LN

B
U

C
H

A
L

HEIGH
TS

O
SP

R
E

Y
C

T

C
AT

B
I R

D
L

N

EAST
PLEASAN

T
LA

K
E

R
D

W
E

S
T

P
L

EA
SA

NT
LAKE

R
D

P
R

E
SE

R
V

E
TR

BLUE JAY
LN

BLU E J A Y
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

W
E

ST
P

L
E

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

H
IL

L
FA

R
M

C
IR

R
E

D
B

A
R

N
R

D

EVERG REEN
RD

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

  L
N

EAST  OAKS  RD

EA
ST

PLEASA

NT
LA

K
E

RD

HUMMINGBIRD
HILL

RO
BIN LN

THO MPSO N
L

N

NORTH
M ALL ARD RD

N
O

R T
H

M
A

L
L

A
R

D
R

D

P
IN

E
R

D

HAWTHORNE CT

EAST
PLE

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
  LN

DEER
HILLS
CIR

EAST O
AKS RD

DOVE LN

M
A

L
LA

R
D

RD

MINK LN

NORTH
MALLARD

CT

SKILLMAN
LN

SPRING FARM LN

SPRING FARM LN

EAST O R IO
LE

LN

BENT
TREE
CT

BLACK
LAKE
CT

BLAC
K

LAKE RD

RED
FOREST

W
AY

RED FOREST WAY

NORTH OAKS
RD

S
O

U
T

H
D

EE P
L AKE RD

EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

W
EST

PLEASANT LAKE RD

SU

M AC
LN

ISLA
N

D
R

D

ISLA
N

D
RD

SO

UTH
LO

N
G

LA
K

E
T

R

SOUTH LONG LAKE TR

PRESERVE
TR

B
LA

C
K

OA
K

RD

BLACK OAK RD

LO
N

G
M

A
R

SH
LN

P
ET

ER
SO

N
P

L

SCOTCH PI NE RD

S
C

O
T

C
H

P
IN

E
R

D

SCOTCH
PINE

LN

SCOTCH
PINE

CT

SCOTCH
PINE

CIR

DO
N

BUSH RD

SOUTHPOINTECT
RAVEN RD

MEADOWLARK
LN

W ILLOW RD

W
E

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
L

A
K

E
R

D EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

H
IG

H

CIRCLE

W
AY

WEST BAY LN

EAGL E

R
ID

G
E

R
D

E
A

G
LE

R
ID

G
E

R
D

SUNSET
LN

MAYCOMB LN

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

D

RA
D

LE
Y 

PL ALCO
TT CT

C
A

L
P

U
R

N
IA

 C
T

M
O

C
K

IN
G

B
IR

D
  C

T

TREE FARM LN

CRESCENT LN

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
C

T

RA
P

P
FARM

B
LV

D

M
O

N
A

R CH WAYM
O

N
A

R
C

H
L

N

RAPP FARM
L

N

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M

P LACE

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M
BLVD

SKI H ILL

RCM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RCM-PUD

RMM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RMM

RSL

RSL-PUD

Fut
ure

Red

For
est

RMH-PUD

RSM-PUD

R

RSL

RSL

RSM

R

R

RSL

RSL

R

RSM

R
RMM-PUDRSM

RMM

RSM

R

C

C/S

City of North Oaks Comprehensive Plan

MAP 8
Existing Zoning

Districts Map

OS (Open Space)

RSL (Residential Single Family - Low Density)

RSL-PUD (Residential Single Family - PUD)

RSM (Residential Single Family - Medium Density)

RMM (Residential Multiple Family Medium Density)

RMM-PUD (Residential Multiple Family Medium
Density - PUD)

RMH-PUD (Residential Multiple Family High
Density - PUD)

RCM-PUD (Residential-Commercial Mixed-PUD)

C (Commercial)

C/S (Commercial/Service)

LI (Limited Industrial)

R (Recreation)

HP (Historic Preservation)

Shoreland District Boundaries

Source: City Zoning Map
as of 5 - 10 - 21

North Oaks
Boundary

¦

RSM-PUD (Res. Single Fam. - Med. Density - PUD)

141



Landform® and Site to Finish® are registered service marks of Landform Professional Services, LLC.

11.30.2023
Ordinance Amendments • North Oaks, MN

Building Height and Setbacks Exhibit

142



 

 

 
 Kennedy & Graven 

Fifth Street Towers 

150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

 (612) 337-9245 direct 

bnason@kennedy-graven.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission Chair and Members 

 

FROM: Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 

DATE: February 23, 2024 

 

RE:  Excessive Noise Ordinance 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. Background 

 

State statutes and the City Code prohibit certain excessively loud muffler noises. In addition to 

loud vehicle noise, concerns have been raised related to other types of loud noise that can disturb 

the peace within the community. The ordinance working group recently reviewed and discussed 

options for the City to strengthen its noise regulations to address other types of loud noises that 

are not currently addressed in the existing City Code. The working group reviewed other cities’ 

ordinances prohibiting excessive noise and has prepared a draft ordinance for Planning 

Commission review and discussion that would address many of the more common types of 

nuisance noise. Among other things, the ordinance establishes hours for construction, yard work, 

and lawn maintenance activities that generate loud noises audible by other residents and carves 

out exceptions for snow removal and other necessary activities. The Planning Commission is asked 

to provide direction regarding the proposed prohibitions, acceptable hours for various activities, 

and related provisions of the ordinance. 

 

2. Requested Planning Commission Action 

 

The Planning Commission is asked to review the attached draft excessive noise ordinance, and 

make a recommendation to the City Council regarding adoption of the same.   

143



 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XIII, CHAPTER 130, REGARDING 

UNNECESSARY NOISE 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One.  Title XIII, Chapter 130, Section 130.05 Amendment:  Title XIII, Chapter 

130, Section 130.05 of the North Oaks City Code is hereby added as follows: 

 

§ 130.05 UNNECESSARY NOISE.  

 

(A) General Rule: No person shall make, continue, permit or cause to be made or continued 

any loud, unusual, or unnecessary noise or any noise within the City that would be likely 

to annoy, disturb, injure or endanger the comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of a 

reasonable person of ordinary sensibilities. 

 

(B) Definition: For the purposes of this Section, an Unnecessary Noise is defined as follows: 

 

UNNECESSARY NOISE: 

 

(1) Creation of an amplified sound that is audible above the level of 

conversational speech at a distance of fifty feet (50') or more from the point 

of origin of the amplified sound. This includes but is not limited to, large 

assemblies, live music, music from electronic devices, music from motor 

vehicles, radio, speakers/loudspeakers, horns, and similar devices. 

 

(2) Noises that exceed the standards of the Minnesota Pollution Control 

Agency. 

 

(3) Discharging the exhaust or permitting the discharge of the exhaust from any 

motor vehicle except through a muffler that effectively prevents abnormal 

or excessive noise and complies with all state laws and regulations, or any 

violation of the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 169.69 

 

(4) The use of domestic power equipment, power tools, landscaping equipment, 

lawn mowers, and leaf blowers. 

 

(5) Construction-related activity involving: 

 

a.  The operation of domestic power equipment, commercial tools, 

power tools, motorized equipment, landscaping equipment, or 

demolition equipment; or 

144



 

 

b. The construction, remodeling, repair or maintenance of structures, 

except for work done entirely inside a structure that is not audible on 

adjacent properties; or 

c. The delivery or unloading of equipment and machinery or building, 

construction, or landscaping materials weighing more than 50 lbs. 

The activities described in sections B(4) and B(5) shall not constitute unnecessary noise when 

conducted between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. and 

6:00 p.m. Saturday, and 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on Sundays and legal holidays. 

(C) Exemptions: The following noise events are exempt from the prohibitions in this section 

and shall not be considered unnecessary noise: 

(1) Fire, police, civil defense, or other emergency signaling devices or vehicles 

(2) Garbage, refuse hauling and recycling trucks operating as permitted under the 

City Code. 

(3) Noise created exclusively in the performance of emergency work to preserve the 

public health, safety or welfare, or in the performance of emergency work 

necessary to restore a public service, make emergency repairs, or eliminate a 

hazard. 

(4) Snow plowing vehicles. 

(5) Domestic snow removal or the use of lawnmowers. 

(6) Anti-theft devices, security alarms, and similar systems, when functioning 

properly. 

(7) Church bells, chimes, or other bells, when used for their intended purposes. 

(8) The construction of public or private streets, sidewalks, utilities, or other 

infrastructure is allowed from 7:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 

and at such other times as approved by the City Administrator or their designee. 

(9) Construction or repair work conducted in response to a significant storm or other 

natural disaster, when approved in advance by the Chief Building Official. 

(10) All activities and land uses with specific hours of operation that are regulated 

and approved by the City through a licensing, permitting or zoning process, as 

long as the activity or use is operating within the designated parameters. 

 

(D) Responsible Party: In addition to any person causing unnecessary noise, any owner, tenant, 

resident, occupant or manager of a building, property location, site or vehicle, who has the 

legal authority to control the activities constituting unnecessary noise, and who knows or 

has reason to know of the disturbance or unnecessary noise and fails to immediately take 

reasonable steps to abate the disturbance or unnecessary noise is guilty of violating this 

section.  

 

Section Two.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 

adoption and publication as provided by law. 

Passed in regular session of the City Council on the _____ day of _____ 2024. 

 

 

145



 

 

      CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

(Published in the Shoreview Press on ________________, 2024) 

146


	Planning Commission Agenda
	Item 6a.   - Planning Commission Minutes  11.30.2023 v2.pdf
	Item 7a. - 2024-02-29 staff packet_8 Sherwood Trail.pdf
	Item 7b. - 2024-02-29 PC Packet_1 Sherwood Trail.pdf
	Item 7c. - 2024-02-29 Staff packet_2 Sherwood Trail.pdf
	Item 7d. - 2024-02-29 PC Packet_70 W Pleasant.pdf
	Item 7e. - 2024-02-29 Staff packet_4 dove lane.pdf
	Item 7f. - 2024-02-29 PC Packet_garage size ordinance v2.pdf
	Item 7g.  - 2024-02-29 PC packet_setback ordinance v3.pdf
	Item 7h. - Memo re Noise Ordinance.pdf
	Item 7h. - Ord Amd Noise Restrictions 2.23.2024.pdf



